
 

 

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764626  

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

REVISED 
AGENDA 
 
 
 

 
 

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Date & Time - Thursday, 14 January 2021 at 4.00 pm 
 

Venue - This will be a meeting held in line with The 
Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & 
Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & 
Wales) Regulations 2020 

 

The meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and 
    streamed live, via the following link: 
  www.facebook.com/SouthHollandDCofficial/ 

 

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee: 
 
Councillors: J R Astill (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, T A Carter (Chairman), 
A M Newton, P A Redgate, M D Seymour and S C Walsh 
 
Quorum 3. 

 
 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones  

 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:  8 January 2021 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.facebook.com/SouthHollandDCofficial/


 

 

AGENDA 
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS 
ARE APPROXIMATE 
 
TIME 
4.00pm 1.  Apologies for absence. 

  
 

4.01pm 2.  Declaration of Interests -  
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
the Councillor must declare the interest and leave the 
meeting without participating in any discussion or making 
a statement on the item, except where a Councillor is 
permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation).  
 

 

4.02pm 3.  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 26 November 2020 (copy enclosed). 
 

(Pages 5 - 
24) 

4.05pm 4.  2019/20 Annual Accounts Audit -  
Verbal update by the Deputy Head of Financial Services 
 

 

4.15pm 5.  Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim - 2019/20 -  
To report the outcome of the 2019/20 Housing Benefit 
subsidy claim audit (report of the Portfolio Holder for 
Finance, Strategies and Partnerships and the Executive 
Director Commercialisation (S151) enclosed). 
 

(Pages 25 
- 30) 

4.25pm 6.  Treasury Management Policy & Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2021/22. -  
To provide pre-decision scrutiny to the strategy being 
proposed (report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance, 
Strategy and Partnerships and the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151) enclosed). 
 

(Pages 31 
- 68) 

4.45pm 7.  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity -  
To examine the progress made between 11 November 
2020 and 5 January 2021 in relation to the completion of 
the revised Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 (report 
of the Head of Internal Audit enclosed). 
 

(Pages 69 
- 76) 

5.00pm 8.  Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations. -  
To provide members with the position on the progress 
made by management in implementing agreed Internal 
Audit recommendations as at 5 January 2021 (report of 
the Head of Internal Audit enclosed). 
 

(Pages 77 
- 90) 

5.20pm 9.  Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment -  
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) document on “audit committee’s 
practical guidance for local authorities and police” sets 

(Pages 91 
- 100) 

Page 2



 

 

out the guidance on the function and the operation of 
audit committees.  It represents CIPFA’s view of best 
practice and incorporates the position statements 
previously issued. 
 
The Governance and Audit Committee has been 
undertaking self-assessments since 2008 and members 
will discuss the attached CIPFA Audit Committee Self 
Assessment (report of the Head of Internal Audit 
enclosed). 
 

5.30pm 10.  Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme -  
To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Executive Manager – 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
101 - 104) 

5.35pm 11.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 
-  
 
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 

reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency. 

 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 9 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in line 
with The Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & Wales) Regulations 2020, on 
Thursday, 26 November 2020 at 4.00 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
T A Carter (Chairman) 

J R Astill (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

C J T H Brewis 
A M Newton 
 

P A Redgate 
M D Seymour 
 

S C Walsh 
 

 

In Attendance:  M Hodgson (Ernst & Young), F Dodimead (Director of Audit, Eastern 
Internal Audit Services), the Executive Manager Growth, the Strategic Finance and 
Compliance Manager, the Deputy Head of Financial Services, the Treasury and 
Investment Manager, the Strategic Housing Manager, the Senior Change, Innovation 
and Performance Business Partner, the Democratic Services Manager, the 
Democratic Services Team Leader, the Democratic Services Officer and the Portfolio 
Holder for Finance, Strategy and Partnerships. 
 
 
 Action By 

11. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.   

  

 There were no apologies for absence.   

   

12. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

  

 There were no declarations of interest.   

   

13. MINUTES   

  

 The minutes of the meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee held on 30 July 2020 were signed by the Chairman as 
a correct record.  

 

   

14. 2019/20 AUDIT PLAN AND AUDIT RESULTS REPORT   

  

 The Associate Partner (Ernst & Young) noted that it was unusual 
to present both the Audit Plan and Audit Results report on the 
same agenda. Due to the unusual circumstances of the year 
caused by the Covid pandemic, this was the first opportunity for 
presentation of the Audit Plan.  The Audit Plan set out the Audit 
risks to be addressed, and were equally shown in the Audit 
Results report, and it was therefore agreed that the two reports be 
presented and discussed together. 
 

There had been a number of constraints, with the Council’s 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



- 10 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

budget being prepared by Council officers during lockdown, and 
the whole audit process had been undertaken remotely.  There 
had also been additional financial reporting requirements 
involving additional procedures, as a result of Covid-19, around 
property, plant and equipment valuations, pension valuations and 
the going-concern concept.  Auditors were working to a materiality 
level of £921,000 for the Council.        
 
The following Audit Risks were explained, and were set out in 
both the 2019/20 Audit Plan and the Audit Results Report: 
 

 Fraud risks- The risk could be that management could 
override controls and financially mis-report the position of the 
Council as at 31 March, and through the incorrect 
capitalisation of revenue expenditure.  Auditors had found no 
evidence of this, and this was a key assurance for the 
Committee to note. 

 

 Property, plant and equipment valuation– this would be a key 
risk in any normal audit year, but was heightened this year by 
the Covid pandemic, and the fact that the balance sheet date 
of 31 March 2020 was in the middle of the first lockdown 
period.  This was key for assets valued at fair value.  The 
Council had a relatively high level of investment property 
valued at fair value and the assets therefore had to be 
considered specifically, and the valuations tested upon which 
they were set within the financial statements.  Auditors were 
awaiting sample documentation to complete procedures in this 
area and would expect some additional disclosures to be 
made in the set of accounts as a result. 

 

 Pension liability on the balance sheet – There were two audit-
related issues being focussed on: 1) National remedy to the 
McCloud issue (an employment equalisation of pay issue last 
year) – there had been a remedy in July this year, and this 
remedy had changed some of the assumptions built into the 
actuarial model behind the liability; 2) Value of investments 
assets in the Lincolnshire Pension Fund and how these were 
valued within the actuarial model – assurances had been 
received from the Pension Fund auditor, which showed that 
the fund was understated by £12million at 31 March.  SHDC’s 
share of this was only £330,000, but this would reduce the 
liability showing within the draft financial statements.   As a 
result of these two issues, officers had requested an updated 
actuarial valuation in order to assess the impact on the 
Council’s liability, and to reflect this appropriately in the 
revised accounts.  Ernst and Young were awaiting this 
updated report. 

Page 6



- 11 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

 

 Non-domestic rate appeal provision – This was a key 
estimate, with key judgement and was complex in its nature. 
Fluctuations had been seen in past years, giving rise to audit 
risk however, the auditors had completed procedures and 
there were no issues highlighted. 

 

 Going concern – This was key for a number of reasons: 1) 
This was a new audit standard, driving auditors to pay more 
attention to this area; 2) Covid 19 and the impact it had on the 
Council’s finances. This was especially true as the going 
concern concept was for a period of 12 months from the date 
of approval of financial statements.  This covered 2 municipal 
years, the second of which, 2021/22 did not yet have a Local 
Government Settlement behind it and many Councils across 
the country were facing additional costs and loss of income as 
a result of the pandemic and were having to assess their 
reserve positions.  A going-concern assessment had been 
requested from managers – when received this would have to 
be reviewed, stress-tested, and consideration given to how 
this would affect the future liquidity and reserve position of the 
Council over the 12 month period. 

  
Audit differences (Section 4 of the report) – To date, there were 
no adjusted numerical differences.  Only one un-adjusted error 
had been found, based on the audit sample extrapolation, which 
was for a total of only £158,000.  Although this technically 
breached the reporting threshold, it was not considered material 
in view of the £921,000 threshold, and there was therefore no 
need for adjustment in terms of materiality. 
 
The report set out areas of work to be completed.  The amount of 
time available meant that Ernst Young would not achieve the 
publication date of 30 November 2020 for the Audit Report, but a 
notice could be published on the SHDC website adhering to 
requirements of Audit and Accounts Regulations.  The Associate 
Partner (Ernst and Young) and the Strategic Finance and 
Compliance Manager would agree on a date to close out 
procedures to issue an audit opinion as soon as possible. 
 
The following issues were raised: 
 

 Members asked that their thanks be noted for the work officers 
at SHDC and Ernst Young had undertaken in bringing the 
audit to the point it was at currently.    

 

 Within the Audit Plan, the auditors requested that the 
Governance and Audit Committee confirm its understanding 

Page 7



- 12 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

of, and agreement to the materiality and reporting levels.  The 
Committee confirmed that this was the case. 

 

 The Audit Plan stated that the auditors met regularly with the 
Head of Internal Audit to review internal audit plans, and the 
results of their work – had this happened as planned or had 
the Covid pandemic made this difficult? 

o The Associate Partner (Ernst Young) confirmed that 
he and the Director of Audit met regularly, that he 
had an appreciation of the key messages coming 
out of Internal Audit’s work and how these issues 
impacted on Ernst Young’s responsibilities. 

 

 The Audit Plan stated how Ernst Young were working to 
support the Authority.  However, the audit was behind 
schedule, and although the Covid pandemic had clearly 
affected it this year, the audit had also been behind schedule 
last year.  How was the work progressing, and had there been 
any learning points taken on board? 

o The relationship between the auditors and the 
Authority was good, and some lessons had been 
learned from last year however, every audit 
provided its challenges and the Covid pandemic had 
clearly impacted on the current one.  Ernst Young 
could provide officers at SHDC with a more up-front 
list of requirements in order that they could prepare 
for them in advance.  Ongoing discussions and 
liaison had been good.  An audit for an authority of 
SHDC’s size required a significant amount of audit 
assurance to be gained and there was a small 
window in which this information could be gained, 
and the timeframe had therefore over-run.  
However, the quality of the audit had to be the first 
consideration. 

 

 Could the auditor provide an estimate for sign off? 
o It was anticipated that, if information was presented 

in a timely manner, that any outstanding issues 
could be cleared before Christmas, with sign off 
after Christmas. 

 

 Within the Audit Plan, specialists used were listed – with 
regard to valuers for land and buildings, did auditors consider 
how long a valuer had been used, and whether they could 
remain objective if this had been for a long time? 

o Where there had been a very long tenure, this could 
sometimes be an issue however, this was not 
currently the position.  The main criteria that were 

Page 8



- 13 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

looked at were qualifications and experience in the 
sector, and ability to do the job, rather than tenure. 

 

 The fee amount was high and had increased greatly.  Whilst 
there was some appreciation that there had been extra work 
due to the Covid pandemic, had the amount of fees been 
agreed, and was the amount for additional work in addition to 
the original quotation? 

o With regard to the main fee, in an ordinary year, 
public sector audit appointments set an audit fee for 
each body within its contract remit, which was the 
scale fee set out in the report.  The scale fee was 
unfortunately linked to risk and audit requirements 
dating back 10 years, and the auditor believed this 
to be outdated for the level of risk and complexity 
involved in undertaking an audit now.  The auditors 
believed that the revised figure was a fair fee to 
discharge their statutory and professional 
responsibility under international auditing standards.  
Discussions had taken place with senior officers at 
SHDC, who provided their own views, and the 
information was now with PSAA, as regulator to 
determine what they believed was the correct fee. 

o With regard to additional Covid–related procedures, 
it was necessary to complete the audit in order to 
see what impact Covid had had on the audit – these 
fees would be over and above the original amount. 

o The Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager 
confirmed that officers from SHDC had met the 
auditors to consider the revised proposals.  No 
confirmation had yet been received of the final fee 
as this was currently being negotiated. Once the 
recommendations were received, a follow up 
meeting between SHDC and the auditors would take 
place, and this would be reported back to the 
Committee. 

 

 In view of the fact that the accounts had been late in the last 
year, and would be this year, how long was the contract, when 
would it be reviewed, and was the Council getting value for 
money, especially in view of the large increase in fees? 

o The auditors confirmed that last year was the first in 
a five year contract. 

o The Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager 
explained that this was a nationally procured 
contract and the Authority was confined to some 
extent by the national procurement guidelines.  
SHDC were reviewing the fees.  There was a review 

Page 9



- 14 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

of external audit fees being undertaken nationally by 
the Redmond Review and there could be some 
intervention by Government to this.  Officers would 
provide an update on the national process in due 
course. 

 Members responded that the Committee should monitor the 
contract with Ernst and Young and also stated that the Covid 
pandemic could not always be a reason for delay. 

 

 The Approval of Financial statements 2019/20 stated that 
supporting documents regarding sample testing were still 
outstanding – was there any further information regarding 
this? 

o Auditors responded that they had received the 
respective evidence in respect of General Fund 
properties but not the investment property element 
of the portfolio. 

o The Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager 
confirmed that these were internal records held by 
SHDC.  The fact that these were paper records held 
on site was making it more difficult to access, but 
this was currently being progressed. 

 

 Had the delay in the audit for SHDC been replicated with other 
authorities?  Had the Covid pandemic been a contributing 
factor in delays for all authorities and how did SHDC 
compare?  

o The auditors confirmed that they were not behind on 
their procedures, and that they had input the 
budgeted number of hours agreed.  Delays had 
been as a result of a delay in information requested 
by the auditor in order to undertake the audit, being 
provided by the Authority.  Equally, many Councils 
were struggling to provide sufficient information to 
allow auditors to publish within the timeframes.  
Covid was having an impact and contributing to 
delays as remote working was making it difficult to 
obtain and send the information through. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That both the 2019/20 Audit Plan, and the Audit Results Report 
be noted.  

   

15. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2019/20   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151 Officer) which sought approval for the 

 

Page 10



- 15 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

Annual Governance Statement for inclusion with the Council’s 
published Financial Statements, and approval of the Audited 
Financial Statements 2019/20 for publication. 
 

The draft 2019/20 Financial Statements were signed by the 
Section 151 Officer on 28 August 2020, and were considered by 
the Committee at a training session on 22 October 2020. 
 
A small number of presentational adjustments were made to the 
draft Financial Statements to ensure compliance with the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2019/20. 
 
The external audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended 
31 March 2020 was now substantially complete, and the 
Statements were attached as Appendix A.  At the time of writing 
the report, there were some areas of outstanding work that the 
external auditors, EY LLP, were still completing, primarily due to 
delay relating to the availability of up to date pension fund asset 
values.  However, the Committee was advised that the Pension 
Fund Audit was now complete, a revised Pensions report had 
been requested for analysis to ascertain whether there had been 
any material changes from the version used in the accounts.  If 
there had been any material changes, the accounts would need to 
be adjusted accordingly. 
 
Officers requested that, as the accounts were not yet complete, 
that recommendation 2 of the report be amended to read: 
 

 That the Section 151 Officer be delegated, in consultation with 
the Chairman of the Governance and Audit Committee, to 
authorise any amendments, if required, after the committee 
date and prior to the official signing of the Accounts. 

 
Members requested that the recommendation be amended further 
to reflect the fact that the Financial Statements would not need to 
come back to the Committee, unless there was a material 
change.  Officers responded that the recommendation could be 
changed in this respect, and even if there were no material 
changes to make to the accounts, an update would still be 
provided to the meeting following the signing of the accounts, to 
provide the Committee with an update to any amendments, if any, 
had been made following this meeting.   
 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the Financial Statements 2019/20 (Appendix A) be approved; 

 

Page 11



- 16 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

b) That the Section 151 Officer be delegated, in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Governance and Audit Committee, to authorise any 
material amendments, if required, after the committee date and prior 
to the official signing of the Accounts; 

 
c) That the Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 be approved; and 

 
d) That the Letter of Representation to EY (Appendix B) be signed by 

the Section 151 Officer and the Chairman of the Governance and 
Audit Committee, on the Committee’s behalf.  

   

16. ANNUAL PLAN FOR INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which set out the revised annual plan for internal audit 
activity for 2020/21. 
 

The 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan was approved by the 
Governance and Audit Committee on 12 March 2020.  However, 
in line with the PSIAS, the risk-based plan was required to be 
sufficiently flexible to reflect the changing risks and priorities of 
the organisation. 
 
The Coronavirus pandemic had impacted the Council significantly 
in several ways and Internal Audit therefore needed to remain 
responsive to the needs and risks of the Council by revising the 
agreed Internal Audit Plan. 
 
In response to the significant pressure placed on the Council to 
react effectively to the pandemic, the Chief Executive requested 
that all 2020/21 Internal Audit activity be paused until at least 
quarter 2.  In addition, the Internal Audit contractors TIAA took the 
decision to furlough their workforce until 1 July 2020. 
 
The Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 would therefore be revised to 
respond to the changing risk profile of the Council, to ensure that 
Internal Audit and Officer resources were able to support the 
assurance work required to formulate an opinion on the 
governance, risk and control framework for 2020/21. 
 
Members were advised that the revised plan had been agreed by 
managers in October, TIAA had started work on the plan and it 
had reduced the number of audit days from 225 to 150.  The 
revised plan covered the necessities for the current year, and 
included a change of direction for some of the audits.  This 
included an assurance mapping exercise to understand how the 
initial Covid outbreak had impacted on systems and processes 
and whether anything from the outbreak had impacted enough to 
warrant further audit work, impacted on the plan for the current or 

 

Page 12



- 17 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

next year, or whether the internal audits being undertaken in the 
current year needed to be revised.  Consideration had been given 
to the Council’s response to the outbreak, and how anything 
around the governance and assurance processes affected the 
plan.  It also included a reduction in the remaining areas, and a 
Covid audit to be undertaken in quarter 4 to follow on from the 
assurance mapping exercise.  This would look at the Council’s 
long-term response to Covid, how it was managed, and how it 
was managing the governance, risk and assurance around the 
Council. 
 
The following issues were raised: 
 

 The report stated that Internal Audit reviews that were 
included in the original plan for 2020/21 would be deferred to 
2021/22, and that a risk assessment would be undertaken to 
establish whether each area was still required early in 2021 
when the risk based internal audit plan for the year ahead was 
developed.  What risk assessment had been undertaken 
relating to them being deferred in the first place?  

o This was part of the assurance mapping exercise.  As 
part of the exercise, the auditors would be looking to 
see what was removed from the plan that was a key 
area to be included, and if there was anything else that 
was relevant to be included.  A comparison was being 
undertaken with other Councils to see what their plans 
were, what they had done in response to Covid and if 
any of these points were relevant to SHDC.  The 
outcome of this comparison exercise would be 
presented to a future meeting.   

 

 How did the reduction in the number of audit days compare to 
other Councils?  

o Within the consortium, each authority’s plans had been 
reduced, in other areas, authorities had retained the 
same level of days. SHDC’s number of audit days had 
not been reduced as much as other authorities.  Some 
areas that were to be looked at in the current year, such 
as Planning and Licensing (day to day business and 
how long-term effects of Covid were affecting day to 
day business) would be considered next year.   

 

 As the number of audit days had reduced, would the amount 
of payment for the audit also be reduced, or would it be held in 
contingency for the future? 

o In terms of the contract, TIAA were only paid for the 
work delivered.  It was a flexible contract therefore a 
reduction in days would result in a reduction in income 

Page 13



- 18 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

for TIAA, although there was a contingency in place to 
cover this. 

 

 The report stated that the decrease in the amount of days for 
the audit represented the absolute minimum assurance 
required to form a caveated opinion on the governance, risk 
management and control framework for 2020/21.  Were the 
auditors satisfied with the amount of audit that was being 
undertaken? 

o Again, this was part of the assurance mapping 
exercise.  A detailed review of the response to Covid 
was being undertaken and management assurances for 
each of the areas had been gained.  The outcome of 
the assurance mapping exercise would be presented to 
the next meeting of the Committee and would highlight 
whether actions had been undertaken to an appropriate 
level.  Another issue for small councils was payments to 
businesses, the impact of it and how individual councils 
were responding to this.  The assurance mapping 
exercise was currently being finalised and consideration 
would be given to whether the number of audit days 
should be increased. Consideration was also being 
given to potentially including another audit and the 
options for this were to either add to the current year’s 
plan or move to next year’s plan. 

 

 With the deferment of a number of audits from this year to next 
year, did the Authority and TIAA have sufficient resources to 
undertake next year’s programmes in a timely manner, not 
knowing whether the current difficulties that the Covid 
pandemic had caused would continue into next year.  

o For the current year, resources had already been 
allocated to the various audits within the plan.  Quarter 
3 was already well underway, and resources had been 
allocated to quarter 4.  Consideration had also been 
given to the resourcing requirements for the next year, 
with the amount of work going up, and there was spare 
capacity available to do this.  TIAA was well placed to 
deliver the audits.  

 
AGREED: 
 
That the revised internal audit plan of work for 2020/21 be noted.  

   

17. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit, which examined the progress made between 21 July 2020 

 

Page 14



- 19 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

and 11 November 2020 in relation to the completion of the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21.  
 

The Governance and Audit Committee received updates on 
progress made against the annual internal audit plan.  The report 
formed part of the overall reporting requirements to assist the 
Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal 
audit activity. 
 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards required the Chief 
Audit Executive to report to the Governance and Audit Committee 
the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed plan, 
including any significant risk exposures and control issues.  The 
frequency of reporting at South Holland was to each meeting.   
 
To comply with the above requirements, the report identified: 
 

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 

 Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 

 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 

 Performance measures to date 
 
The Committee was advised of details of progress made in 
delivering the agreed audit work, and the outcomes arising from 
the auditor’s work was detailed within the report. 
 
At the meeting on 12 March 2020, the Annual Internal Audit Plan 
for the year was approved, identifying the specific audits to be 
delivered. Since that meeting, the plan had been revised in order 
to better respond to the Coronavirus pandemic. 
 
Due to the late start of the internal Audit Plan for the 2020/21 
financial year, no reports had been finalised to date, however the 
plan of work was on track to the revised timetable. 
 
With regard to the virtual nature of interactions and clients 
providing information online, a slight delay had been seen in the 
early stages, however this had now settled down, and new ways 
of sharing data were continually being developed. 
 
For following issues were raised: 
 

 The report stated that due to the late start of the Internal Audit 
Plan for work for 2020/21, a quarter one report was not 
provided, a quarter two report had been provided and upon 
return from maternity leave, the Internal Audit Manager would 
receive the quarter three report and would review both of the 
outputs with regard to the performance.  Was this not being 

Page 15



- 20 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

picked up during the officer’s absence? 
o There was no work undertaken in quarter one, and 

quarter two was taken up with the Assurance 
Mapping exercise.  The Director of Audit advised 
that she wrote the quarterly reports, would send the 
quarter three report to the member of staff and upon 
her return, this would be discussed.  Anything 
contentious would be discussed with existing 
officers. 

 

 Members noted that within Appendix 1, no information had 
been added in the status column.   

o Each item with a days’ delivered figure were in 
progress, the assurance mapping had reached draft 
report stage and the remainder were in progress as 
they had started in quarter three.  The first of the 
audits would be concluded within the next few days.  
The Housing Benefit Subsidy report was being 
worked on and was being undertaken by Audit 
Lincolnshire.  The Director of Audit advised that she 
was in regular contact with Audit Lincolnshire to 
track progress, and she also advised that no report 
was produced for this audit. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the progress of the internal audit plan of work for 2020/21 be 
noted.  

   

18. FOLLOW UP REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT 
 RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Internal Audit 
Manager, which provided members with the position on the 
progress made by management in implementing agreed Internal 
Audit recommendations as at 11 November 2020. 
 

In 2017/18, a total of 85 recommendations were raised by both 
internal audit providers.  Of those, 82 had been implemented by 
management, three were outstanding (one urgent and two 
important).  The management responses in relation to the 
outstanding urgent and important outstanding recommendations 
could be seen at Appendix 2 of the report. 
 
In 2018/19, a total of 76 recommendations were raised by both 
internal audit providers.  Of those, 67 had been completed and 9 
(two urgent, six important and one needing attention) were 
overdue.  The management responses in relation to the 

 

Page 16



- 21 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

outstanding important recommendations could be seen at 
Appendix 3 of the report. 
 
In 2019/20, a total of 77 recommendations were agreed.  Of 
these, 44 had been completed, 12 were outstanding (four urgent, 
four important and four needing attention).  A total of 21 were not 
yet due. 
 
The information within the report was considered, and the 
following issues were raised: 
 

 It was disappointing that there were still some outstanding 
actions that were 2-3 years behind the original date, and 
rather than submitting comments on the report, managers 
should be asked to attend the meeting. 

o The Chairman confirmed that the Strategic Housing 
Manager was in attendance to answer questions 
from the Committee.  

 

 The Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager advised of 
the three areas outstanding from the 2017/18 audit 
recommendations: 1) Asset Management programme review 
of all leases – there was some movement with this item in line 
with a report that had been presented to the last Cabinet 
meeting, but the officer could attend the next meeting if the 
Committee wished; 2) Accounts Payable Key Controls 
(Finance system) – the recommendation was predicated on 
the implementation of the new system which had been 
delayed until 2021; and 3) Welland Homes – the Strategic 
Housing Manager had been invited to the meeting to provide 
an update. 

 

 The Strategic Housing Manager provided the following update 
regarding the outstanding action to devise a service level 
agreement to formally record the services provided by the 
Council to Welland Homes, and to the terms on which those 
services were provided, including service charges.  It was 
anticipated that the final contract would be presented to a 
meeting of the Board on 26 January 2021.  A draft report had 
been submitted to a Board meeting in August 2020, this had 
been broadly agreed, and officers were therefore in the latter 
stages of finalising this action.  The main reason for the time 
taken to finalise the document had been in the understanding 
and content of the contract and agreeing that between the 
Council and the Company.  At the time the recommendation 
was made, Welland Homes had one housing project that had 
been delivered for the Company by SHDC officers.  Also at 
that time there was not an established Housing Development 

Page 17



- 22 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

Team of officers.  Now that a Team was in place, they were 
setting out the parameters of what the service provision should 
look like. In terms of the services the Authority provided to the 
Company, there were two distinct functions – the first was 
around core services and included company administration, 
accounts, budgets, statutory returns, servicing the Board 
meeting and overseeing the property portfolio.  The core 
services were more straightforward in that the Authority had 
an accountant and a company secretary, and the work was 
more standard and cyclical.  The second function related to 
project management around new housing development 
activity.  This had to be agreed and clearly understood 
between both parties. For example, the Company’s Business 
Plan was to have 60 properties in the Company’s ownership 
by 2022.  Welland Homes Company Directors wanted to be 
involved in the selection of the new development, so clear 
understanding of roles and responsibilities in this regard were 
important.  Some matters specifically to be considered within 
the contract were around project management fees to be 
charged to the company – this was essential as they needed 
to be State Aid compliant.  The Authority therefore had to 
make sure that the fees charged were reasonable in 
accordance with the market, and had therefore undertaken a 
benchmarking exercise to ensure set parameters for a 
charging schedule that was acceptable to both the Company 
and the Authority.  With regard to scheme selection, 
agreement had to be reached on a process for selecting new 
housing schemes to ensure that the Board had a fair 
opportunity to rule out or consider housing schemes.  Other 
matters also needed considering such as Key Performance 
Indicators, clarification over how fees would be refreshed and 
agreed going forward, and the parameters around which 
decisions officers could make on behalf of the Company 
(operating decisions). It took some time to form the basis of a 
contract, but a draft agreement had been reached which 
included all of the main points raised that were agreeable to 
both parties.  This was presented to the Welland Homes 
Board in August, the Executive Manager Governance was 
forming the agreement into a contract and it was anticipated 
that this would be presented back to the Company in January 
2021. 

 

 In Appendix 4, it was noted that a number of actions relating to 
Private Sector Housing had been closed in error and given 
revised completion dates.  How could this happen in an area 
to receive ‘No Assurance’, and how confident were officers of 
a resolution? 

o Members were advised that the removal of the 

Page 18



- 23 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

actions was an error, and the result of a technical 
problem with the software used to monitor progress 
of recommendations.  This had now been resolved.  
The Manager had attended the Committee to 
provide an update 18 months ago, and he would be 
invited to attend the next meeting of the Committee 
to provide a progress report. 

 

 With regard to the Allocations Policy in Appendix 3, the 
reasons for delay relating to Housing Needs and the revision 
of the Council’s Common Housing Allocations Policy were 
disappointing.  Despite the Covid pandemic, meetings were 
still taking place. 

 

 With regard to the Financial Services Key Controls – Purchase 
Order exemption list to be reviewed and updated item, it was 
assumed that this was still outstanding due to the new system 
not yet being in place.  Had all mitigation around the purchase 
order system been considered until the new system came into 
place? 

o As part of the project implementation, the Finance 
Team and Project Team were considering a 
Purchase Order system and also rejecting invoices 
without a purchase order.  Work was going on 
behind the scenes that would be implemented with 
the new system. 

 Why had the paper side of the system not been sorted, even 
though the computerised side was still ongoing? 

o There were some limitations around the processes 
within the current purchase order system which was 
why there was a move to a new financial system.  
The exemption list of items where there would be no 
expectation of a purchase order being raised was 
quite short and static in its content so in terms of 
action, the exemption list would not change 
significantly.  The main issues were around how the 
purchase order would be managed. 

 

 With regard to the action that all service areas at both 
Councils, along with their Data Protection Champions provide 
the Information Governance Officer with their completed 
Information Asset Registers, who was actually responsible for 
this?  Was it Managers or the Information Governance 
Officer? 

o Officers would need to find who had overall 
responsibility for this and would report back to the 
Committee.      

 

Page 19



- 24 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

AGREED: 
 
That the information detailed within the report be noted  

   

19. MID TERM TREASURY REPORT 2020/21   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151 Officer), which provided an update of 
the treasury management position of the Council as at 30 
September 2020.  
 

In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA), issued revised Prudential and Treasury 
Management Codes. As from 2020/21, all local authorities would 
be required to prepare a Capital Strategy which was intended to 
provide the following: 
 

 A high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital 
financing and treasury management activity contributed to the 
provision of services; 

 An overview of how the associated risk was managed; 

 The implications for future financial sustainability. 

 A report setting out the Authority’s Capital Strategy was taken 
to full Council as part of the budget setting report on 26 
February 2020. 

 
The mid year report had been prepared in compliance with 
CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management, and covered 
the following: 
 

 An economic update for the 2020/21 financial year to 30 
September 2020; 

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy; 

 The Council’s capital expenditure, as set out in the capital 
strategy and prudential indicators; 

 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2020/21; 

 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2020/21; 

 A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2020/21; 

 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 
2020/21 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the report, the treasury activity as detailed in Appendix A and 
the economic update from Link Asset Services at Appendix B be 

 

Page 20



- 25 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

noted.  
   

20. Q2 STRATEGIC RISK REPORT   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance, which provided an update to the 
Committee on the progress of the Council’s identified strategic 
risks. 
 

The report aimed to present an overview of the strategic risks 
identified by the Council, approach to mitigations and risk scores 
associated with the risks. The report included, at Appendix 1, a 
more detailed Strategic Risk Register document This was the first 
risk report presented to the Committee since the Coronavirus 
pandemic, and was a significantly changed document from 
previous versions.  It covered a new set of areas that had arisen 
as a result of the pandemic including the risks of dealing with 
more than one specific event at the same time in addition to the 
challenges around the Covid pandemic, the potential impact on 
the economy, the ability to conclude Council business, decision 
making in a virtual way, and business continuity in key areas such 
as waste collection.   
 
Officers pointed out that the report stated that there were 27 
strategic risks with 12 at a medium score. However the number of 
risks with a low score was stated as 18 however this should have 
been 15.       
 
As this was the first iteration of the document in the current Covid 
situation, comments from the Committee were welcomed. 
 
Members considered the report, and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 The report was useful however there was a great amount of 
detail within it which was not easily read on an electronic 
device.   

o Officers stated that they would work to produce the 
information in a more user-friendly format. 

 Members responded that the Strategic Risk Register itself had 
much detail on it and needed to be produced in an A3 paper 
format for consideration at future meetings. 

o Officers replied that this could be done. 
 

 There did not appear to be a definition of what constituted red, 
amber or green risks. 

o Officers advised that this information was detailed 
within a grid at the end of the spreadsheets within 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CG  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



- 26 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

Appendix A 
 

 Technology and infrastructure failure – in view of the fact that 
recently, email had not been available for a number of days, 
should the impact of this risk be changed? 

o Officers advised that due to the sensitive nature of 
this item, the risk owner would provide all members 
with details outside of the meeting, of the issues 
around this particular incident. 

 

 The Authority was offering financial support to the leisure 
provider, Parkwood, until the end of December – this date was 
approaching quickly.  Was this mitigation changing? 

o The current negotiating position with the contractor 
ran until the end of December. The Authority was 
working with the contractor to obtain a model for the 
impact on the business to the end of quarter 4 and 
this was also being updated to reflect the impact of 
the announcement today regarding the introduction 
of tier 3 restrictions.  The Authority was awaiting the 
opportunity to bid into some funding from the 
Department of Culture, Media and Sport.  Members 
would also be briefed on the situation more widely 
within due course. 

 

 With regard to the increased risk in the rise of homelessness, 
the Northgate project was stated under mitigation.  Were there 
any risks associated with implementation?  

o Any IT transition created a risk and therefore 
needed to be carefully managed.  The Authority was 
seeking to: 1) develop the new My Choices app in a 
test environment so that when transitioning to a live 
format, the background testing work would have 
been done, and 2) to help further mitigate this, the 
old version of My Choices would be run alongside 
the newer system and could be used, should there 
be any issues with My Choices. 

 

 Outsourcing service provider failures – what was the 
timeframe for updating the supplier risk logs?  

o Officers advised that this work had been completed.  
During the first lockdown, the Contracts and 
Procurement Team had reviewed all contacts to 
understand the impact on them.  As a new set of 
restrictions were currently in force, the same 
process had been undertaken – this had identified 
some issues with a few contractors and some work 
would need to be done with them to understand 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



- 27 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

their mitigations.  The team were working with both 
the contractors and the services to see how the 
risks could be mitigated down. 

 

 Council financial position – It was noted that a Task Group had 
been established to identify further options and opportunities - 
could the Committee schedule into its Work Programme 
regular progress updates? 

o Officers advised that this could be done – the wish 
would be to consult as widely as possible on the 
outcomes.  

 

 Vulnerability risk – Members stated that County-wide, some of 
the forums that had been set up to support the vulnerable had 
been slow in getting off the ground.  Had this improved, was it 
working well and was the Authority now comfortable with risk? 

o Officers were happy with how the mechanisms for 
supporting vulnerable households were now 
working, which had improved from when first 
mobilised.  The position was now much better. 

 

 With regard to Safeguarding and emerging assessment 
frameworks for domestic abuse and other areas, how close 
were they to being put in place, what assessments were 
currently being done and when would they be released?  

o Officers did not have this information but would 
provide it to the Committee in due course. 

 

AGREED: 

That the content of the report be noted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
SK  

   

21. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
 PROGRAMME  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) which set out the Work 
Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 

The following items were noted, following discussions during the 
meeting: 
 

 Outputs from the Savings Task Group would be added to the 
Work Programme 

 Adjustments would be made to the External Audit reports as a 
result of the accounts closure/signing having to be delayed 

 
 

 

Page 23



- 28 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 November 2020 

 

 

 

AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted.  

   

22. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
 URGENT.  

 

  

 It was noted that the Committee were very supportive of the 
Finance staff, were particularly keen to ensure that the audits 
were on track, and that there were concerns with the increased 
external audit fee.  

 

   

 
(The meeting ended at 5.37 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 

Page 24



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Portfolio Holder for Finance, Strategies, Partnerships and Executive Director - 

Commercialisation (S151) 

  

 

To: Governance and Audit Committee Thursday, 14 January 2021 

Council, 20 January 2021  

 

(Author: Sharon Hammond Head of Revenues & Benefits) 

 

Subject Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim - 2019/20 

 

Purpose: To report the outcome of the 2019/20 Housing Benefit Subsidy claim audit.  

 

 

 
Recommendations:  
 
1) That the Governance and Audit Committee notes the outcome of the 2019/20 Housing 

Benefit Subsidy Audit, and  
 

2) That the Council is recommended to continue to disregard from the calculation of housing 
benefit all income prescribed in the Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit (War Pension 
Disregards) Regulations 2007. 

 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 In 2019/20, the Council made payments of Housing Benefit totalling £13,678,610.  The 

Government reimburses the Council for this expenditure by way of Housing Benefit 

subsidy.  The total subsidy claimed from the Government by the Council for 2019/20 

totalled £13,630,425. The Council’s claim for housing benefit subsidy is subject to an 

annual audit. 

1.2 Eligible overpayments, which are subsidised at 40%, contributed the main area of subsidy 

difference, followed by Non Housing Revenue Account (non-HRA) Rent Rebates for people 

placed in board and lodgings by the Council, where the rent exceeded the Local Housing 

Allowance (LHA) rate. 

 

1.3 KPMG undertook the 2019/20 Housing Benefit Subsidy audit, in accordance with the 

Department for Work and Pension (DWP) reporting framework instruction. 

1.4 The methodology involves the auditors checking a random sample of claims to confirm that 

the Council has calculated benefit correctly and maintained appropriate standards of 

evidence and record keeping.  If the auditors identify any errors, then they perform 

additional checks in those specific areas to identify the likely extent of the errors upon the 

claim for subsidy.  The auditors also undertake sample checks to try to identify any 

replication of the errors found in the subsidy claim for the previous year. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5.



1.5 The auditors identified some errors in the calculation of benefit or in its recording and made 

an adjustment to the amount of subsidy claimed to the value of £4,902.  This represents an 

adjustment of 0.04% of the total subsidy claimed.   

1.6 The subsidy regime provides for a degree of error on the part of the Council and the 

Council is not penalised for any overpayments that it makes due to delay or error, providing 

these account for less than 0.48% of its total expenditure. After the adjustments, the 

Council remained comfortably within the permitted thresholds for overpayments caused by 

Local Authority delay or error. 

1.7 Public Sector Partnership Services (PSPS) will use the information provided within the 

letter from the auditor to inform its plans for subsidy, quality assurance and training in the 

coming year. 

2.0 LOCAL DISCRETIONARY MODIFIED SCHEMES 

 

2.1 Legislation provides for certain income to be disregarded when calculating entitlement to 

Housing Benefit.  This includes the first £10.00 per week of any War Disablement or War 

Widows Pension received by the claimant.  

 

2.2 Under Section 134 (8) of the Social Security Administration Act 1992, Councils have the 

discretion to increase the amount that is disregarded of such income.  Regulations 

prescribe which Pensions can be disregarded and a full list can be found in Appendix A. 

 

2.3 South Holland District Council has used its powers in this respect for a number of years 

now, and as part of the audit process this year a confirmation of the Council’s decision was 

required.  As the original decision is now more than ten years old, it is timely for this 

decision to be reviewed as part of this report, for continuation in current and future years.  

 

2.4 The full disregard of War Disablement Pension and War Widows Pension, which is in line 

with the principles of the Armed Forces Covenant, is funded up to 75% of the total cost by 

the Government.  In respect of 2019/20 the cost to South Holland was £3,787. 

 

War Disablement and War Widows Pension disregard – 2019/20  

Expenditure Government contribution Local funding 

£15,150 £11,363 £3,787 

 

 

3.0 OPTIONS 

 

3.1 Consider an alternative level of disregard by either not disregarding certain pensions, or 

only disregarding a fixed amount or lower percentage of the pensions.  This option would 

produce small savings in subsidy loss, but these are likely to be offset by the cost of officer 

time in explaining the consequences to dissatisfied benefit claimants and responding to 

complaints.  

 

3.2 Do nothing.  This would have the same effect as agreeing the recommendation, in that the 

current position would be maintained and the recommendation is not to move from that 

position.  However, the act of doing nothing could place the Council at risk of auditor 

criticism in future years. 

 

Page 26



4.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

4.1 To note the outcome of the 2019/20 audit, and record the continuation of full disregard of 

War Disablement Pension and War Widows Pension disregard in the Housing Benefit and 

Council Tax Benefit (War Pension Disregards) Regulations 2007. 

 

 

5.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

5.1 The recommendation in respect of continuation of war pension disregards demonstrates 

South Holland’s commitment to the Armed Forces Covenant.  The recording of this 

decision will prevent the matter being raised again by the auditors next year.   

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 

Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; 

Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be 

implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

6.1 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 

6.1.1 An impact assessment is not required.  Housing Benefit is administered based on national 

regulations and guidance.  There is no change proposed to the local modified scheme 

which covers the disregard of war pensions. 

 

6.2 Financial 

6.2.1 Housing Benefit is administered on behalf of central government, and subject to subsidy 

arrangements.  The council is able to keep both the subsidy, and Housing Benefit 

Overpayments recovered.   

 

6.3 Reputation 

6.3.1 The continuation of disregards of War Disablement Pension and War Widows Pension 

demonstrates South Holland’s commitment to the principles of the Armed Forces 

Covenant. 

 

7.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

 

7.1 All 

 

8.0 ACRONYMS 

 

8.1 DWP – Department for Work and Pensions 

PSPS – Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd 

 

 

Background papers:- n/a 

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Page 27



Name and Post: Sharon Hammond Head of Revenues & Benefits 

Telephone Number 01507 613306 

Email: Sharon.Hammond@pspsl.co.uk 

 

Key Decision: N  

 

Exempt Decision: N  

 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service  

 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A Schedule to the Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit (War 

Pensions Disregard) Regulations 2007 

 

 

Page 28



APPENDIX 1 

 

The Schedule to the Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit (War Pension Disregards) 

Regulations 2007 (SI: 2007/1619 as amended by SIs 2009/3389 and 2010/2449) 

 

THE SCHEDULE 
 

War disablement and war widow’s pensions 

 

PART 1 

War disablement pensions 

1. The war disablement pensions prescribed are—  

(a) any retired pay or pension or allowance payable in respect of disablement under an 
instrument specified in section 639(2) of the Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) Act 2003; 

(b) any retired pay or pension payable, to a member of the armed forces of the Crown in 
respect of a disablement which is attributable to service, under— 

(i) an Order in Council made under section 3 of the Naval and Marine Pay and 
Pensions Act 1865, 

(ii)  the Army Pensions Warrant 1977, 
(iia) the Army Pensions (Armed Forces Pension Scheme 1975 and Attributable 

Benefits Scheme) Warrant 2010 
(iii) any order or regulations made under section 2 of the Air Force (Constitution) 

Act 1917, 
(iv) any order or regulations made under section 4 of the Reserve Forces Act 

1996,  
(v)  any instrument amending or replacing any of the instruments referred to in 

paragraphs (i) to (iv), or  
(vi) any power of Her Majesty otherwise than under an enactment to make 

provision about pensions for or in respect of persons who have been disabled 
or have died in consequence of service as members of the armed forces of 
the Crown; and 

(c) a payment made under article 14(1)(b) of the Armed Forces and Reserve Forces 
(Compensation Scheme) Order 2005. 

 

PART 2 

War widow’s pensions 

2. The war widow’s pensions prescribed are—  

(a) any pension or allowance payable to a widow, widower or surviving civil partner under an 
instrument specified in section 639(2) of the Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) Act 2003 
in respect of the death or disablement of any person; 

(b) a pension payable, to a widow, widower or surviving civil partner of a member of the armed 
forces of the Crown in respect of death which is attributable to service, under— 

(i) an Order in Council made under section 3 of the Naval and Marine Pay and 
Pensions Act 1865,  

(ii) the Army Pensions Warrant 1977, 
(iia) the Army Pensions (Armed Forces Pension Scheme 1975 and Attributable 

Benefits Scheme) Warrant 2010 
(iii) any order or regulations made under section 2 of the Air Force (Constitution) 

Act 1917, 
(iv) any order or regulations made under section 4 of the Reserve Forces Act 

1996, 
(v) any instrument amending or replacing any of the instruments referred to in 

paragraphs (i) to (iv), or 
(vi) any power of Her Majesty otherwise than under an enactment to make 

provision about pensions for or in respect of persons who have been disabled 
or have died in consequence of service as members of the armed forces of 
the Crown; and 

(c) a payment made under article 21(1)(a) of the Armed Forces and Reserve Forces 
(Compensation Scheme) Order 2005. Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of:  Portfolio Holder for Finance, Strategy & Partnerships and the Executive 

Director - Commercialisation (S151) 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee – Thursday 14 January 2021 
 
(Author: Sean Howsam – Treasury & Investment Manager (PSPSL)) 
 
Subject:  Treasury Management Policy & Treasury Management Strategy Statement, 

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2021/22. 

 
Purpose: To provide pre-decision scrutiny to the strategy being proposed. 
 

 
Recommendation:  
 
1) That the Governance and Audit Committee scrutinise the Treasury Management Policy 

(Appendix A) and the Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy and Annual Investment Strategy 2021/22 (Appendix B) and make any 
comments and suggestions for consideration by Cabinet on 16 February 2021 and Council 
on 3 March 2021 when they consider these documents as part of the budget report. 

 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash 

raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management 
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available 
when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments 
commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially 
before considering investment return. 

 
1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 

Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that the Council can 
meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer-term cash may involve 
arranging long or short-term loans, or using longer-term cash flow surpluses. On 
occasion, when it is prudent and economic, any debt previously drawn may be 
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  

 
1.3 CIPFA defines treasury management as: 
 
 “The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its 

banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with 
those risks.” 

 
1.4 The Council’s treasury function is undertaken by Public Sector Partnership Services 

Limited (PSPSL) on behalf of the Council. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6.



1.5 The CIPFA 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require all local authorities 
to prepare a capital strategy report which will provide the following:  

 
• a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 

treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services 
• an overview of how the associated risk is managed 
• the implications for future financial sustainability 

 
The aim of this capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on the full council 
fully understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital strategy 
requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite.  The capital strategy is being 
reported separately. 

 
2.0 SUMMARY 
 
2.1 There are no proposed changes to the Treasury Management Policy Statement at 

Appendix A and is attached for completeness. 
  

2.2 The Council is required to set out its Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy and Annual Investment Strategy for the forthcoming year. 
These outline the Council’s strategy for borrowing and its policies for managing its 
investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments. Our 
strategy statements for 2021/22 are attached at Appendix B. The strategy statements 
cover: 
 

 reporting requirements 

 capital prudential indicators 2021/22 to 2024/25 

 the borrowing requirement 

 the MRP policy 

 the use of the Council’s resources and the investment position 

 prudential and treasury indicators 

 treasury limits in force which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council 

 prospects for interest rates 

 the borrowing strategy 

 policy on borrowing in advance of need 

 debt rescheduling 

 the investment policy 

 creditworthiness policy 

 country limits 

 investment strategy 
 

2.3 The strategy document presented to Governance and Audit for scrutiny is currently at 
draft stage. This is because the future Capital Programme has yet to be finalised and 
approved by Council. Once this is known the tables within the strategy document shown 
at Appendix B will be amended and considered by Cabinet prior to submission to Council 
for approval before the commencement of the 2021/22 financial year. 
 

2.4 The Council’s strategy statement has been prepared in accordance with the revised 
CIPFA Treasury Management Code and will require approval by Full Council. In addition 
there will be a Mid-Year Treasury Report and Annual Report submitted to Governance 
and Audit Committee. The aim of these reporting arrangements is to ensure that those 
with ultimate responsibility for the treasury management function appreciate fully the 
implications of treasury management policies and activities, and that those implementing 

Page 32



policies and executing transactions have properly fulfilled their responsibilities with regard 
to delegation and reporting. 

 
3.0 OPTIONS 
 
3.1 Members have the option of making comments to Cabinet in respect of the proposed 

strategy or alternatively making no comments. 
 
4.0   REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
4.1 To comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) 

Code of Practice on Treasury Management. 
 
5.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
5.1 The report provides Governance and Audit Members with the proposed Treasury 

Management Policy and Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy for 2021/22. The report requires scrutiny prior 
to submitting to Cabinet and Council for approval.  

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Constitution & Legal 
 
6.1.1 This Council is required to produce a Treasury Management Strategy Statement, 

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy before the 
commencement of each financial year to comply with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management. The 
report has no implications which would affect the constitution and does not therefore 
warrant a further change in the constitution. 

 
6.1.2 Plans and strategies for control of the Council’s borrowing, investments, capital 

expenditure and minimum revenue provision form part of the Council’s policy framework 
and are therefore a non-executive (Council) function under the Council’s Constitution. 

 
6.2 Corporate Priorities 
 
6.2.1 The Treasury Management Strategy (incorporating the Annual Investment Strategy) aims 

to achieve the optimum performance from the Council’s cash flow, debt and investment 
operations and effectively control the associated risks. This will help to finance the 
corporate priorities of the Council. 

 
6.3 Financial  
 
6.3.1 Adoption of the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue 

Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy will ensure sound financial 
controls associated with the management of the authority’s investments and cash flows, 
its banking, money market and capital market transactions and safeguard these assets. 

 
6.4 Risk Management  
 
6.4.1 The Strategy will put in place measures for the effective control of the risks associated 

with Treasury Management and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks. The Council’s priority is the security of its investments. 

 

Page 33



6.5 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
6.5.1 This report is being submitted for pre decision scrutiny prior to submission to Cabinet and 

Council. 
 
6.5.2 Link Group, who are external treasury advisors to the Council, have been consulted in 

relation to the compilation of this report. 
 
7.0   WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
7.1 None. 
 
8.0 ACRONYMS  
 

CDS – Credit Default Swap 
CFR – Capital Financing Requirement 
CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy  
DMADF – Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility 
HRA – Housing Revenue Account 
LIBID – London Interbank Bid Rate 
LOBO - Lender Option Borrower Option 
MHCLG – Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
MRP – Minimum Revenue Provision 
OLTL – Other Long Term Liabilities 
PFI – Public Finance Initiative 
PSPSL - Public Sector Partnership Services Limited 
PWLB – Public Works Loan Board 
VRP – Voluntary Revenue Provision 
 

Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Sean Howsam –Treasury & Investment Manager (PSPSL) 
Telephone Number: 01507 613248 
Email: sean.howsam@pspsl.co.uk 
 
Key Decision:  No  
 
Exempt Decision:  No 
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix A Treasury Management Policy Statement 2021/22 
 
Appendix B Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue 

Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2021/22. 

Page 34



  APPENDIX A 

Treasury Management Policy Statement 2021/22 

South Holland District Council defines its treasury management activities as: 

1. The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its 

banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 

risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 

consistent with those risks. 

2. This Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to 

be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management 

activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury 

management activities will focus on their risk implications for the organisation, and 

any financial instruments entered into to manage these risks. 

3. This Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support 

towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore 

committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury management, 

and to employing suitable comprehensive performance measurement techniques, 

within the context of effective risk management. 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 

 

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual 

Investment Strategy 

 

South Holland District Council 

 

2021/22 

 

 

  

Page 37



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

      
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Background 

 
The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised 
during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is to 
ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed.  
Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the 
Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment 
return. 
 
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s 
capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, 
essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that the Council can meet its capital 
spending obligations. This management of longer-term cash may involve arranging long or short-
term loans, or using longer-term cash flow surpluses. On occasion, when it is prudent and 
economic, any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  
 
The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is critical, as the 
balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to meet spending 
commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for larger capital projects.  The 
treasury operations will see a balance of the interest costs of debt and the investment income 
arising from cash deposits affecting the available budget.  Since cash balances generally result 
from reserves and balances, it is paramount to ensure adequate security of the sums invested, as 
a loss of principal will in effect result in a loss to the General Fund Balance. 
 
Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury function, 
these activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities, (arising usually from capital 
expenditure), and are separate from the day to day treasury management activities. 
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines treasury 
management as: 

 
“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated 
with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 
 

This authority has not engaged in any commercial investments and has immaterial non-treasury 
investments. 
 
1.2 Reporting Requirements 

 
1.2.1 Capital Strategy 
 
The CIPFA 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require all local authorities to 
prepare a capital strategy report which will provide the following:  
 

 a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services. 

 an overview of how the associated risk is managed. 

 the implications for future financial sustainability. 
 

Page 38



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

The aim of this capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members of the full council fully 
understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital strategy 
requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite. 
 
1.2.2 Treasury Management Reporting 
 
The Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main treasury 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals.   
 

a. Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The first, 
and most important report is forward looking and covers: 
 

 the capital plans, (including prudential indicators); 

 a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy, (how residual capital expenditure is 
charged to revenue over time); 

 the treasury management strategy, (how the investments and borrowings are to be 
organised), including treasury indicators; and  

 an investment strategy, (the parameters on how investments are to be managed). 

 
b. A mid-year treasury management report – This is primarily a progress report and 

will update members on the capital position, amending prudential indicators as 
necessary, and whether any policies require revision.  
 

c. An annual treasury report – This is a backward looking review document and  
provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and actual 
treasury operations compared to the estimates within the strategy. 
 

The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being recommended to 
the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 
1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2021/22 

 
The strategy for 2021/22 covers two main areas: 
 
Capital issues 

• the capital expenditure plans and the associated prudential indicators; 
• the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 
Treasury management issues 

• the current treasury position; 
• treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 
• prospects for interest rates; 
• the borrowing strategy; 
• policy on borrowing in advance of need; 
• debt rescheduling; 
• the investment strategy; 
• creditworthiness policy; and 
• the policy on use of external service providers. 
 

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA 
Prudential Code, Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) MRP 
Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and MHCLG Investment Guidance. 
 

 

Page 39



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

1.4 Training 
 

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with responsibility 
for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury management.  This 
especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny.  Member training was last 
undertaken on 14 November 2019 and further training will be arranged as required.  
  
The training needs of Public Sector Partnership Services Limited (PSPSL) treasury 
management officers are periodically reviewed. 

 
1.5 Treasury Management Consultants 

 
PSPSL uses Link Group, Treasury solutions as its external treasury management advisors for the 
Council. 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with the 
organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon the services of our 
external service providers. All decisions will be undertaken with regards to all available 
information, including, but not solely, our treasury advisers. 
 
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury management 
services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The Council will ensure that 
the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be assessed are 
properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review.  
 
 

2. THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2021/22 TO 2024/25  
 
The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management activity. 
The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential indicators, which are 
designed to assist Members’ overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. 
 
2.1 Capital Expenditure 
 
This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both those 
agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle. Members approve capital 
expenditure forecasts as part of the annual Budget report. 
 
The capital expenditure plans mirror those within the budget report and will be amended 
throughout the year as spending plans alter. 
 
Capital Expenditure  
£’000’s 

2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Latest 

Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

HRA 8,888 8,585 11,890 7,030 6,790 6,668 

Non HRA 2,045 6,098 2,762 1,660 2,231 175 

Commercial activities/ non-
financial investments * 

 
1,987 

 
4,306 

 
1,973 

 
500 

 
0 

 
0 

Total  12,920 18,989 16,625 9,190 9,021 6,843 

 
* Commercial activities/non-financial investments relate to areas such as capital expenditure 
on investment properties, loans to third parties etc. 
 

Page 40



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans are 
being financed by capital or revenue resources.  Any shortfall of resources results in a 
funding borrowing need. 
 
Financing of capital 
expenditure £’000’s 

2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Latest 

Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

Capital Receipts 2,925 1,549 54 54 54 54 

HRA Capital Receipts – 
Land Sales 

 
0 

 
410 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Capital Grants & 
Contributions 

 
2,913 

 
2,474 

 
1,321 

 
901 

 
756 

 
0 

Major Repairs Reserve 4,358 4,974 5,171 3,390 3,458 3,527 

Direct Revenue Financing  877 3,340 5,386 3,445 2,913 2,355 

1-4-1-Receipts 538 1,624 766 766 766 766 

Shared Ownership sale 
Proceeds 

 
195 

 
587 

 
891 

 
134 

 
0 

 
0 

Total Funding 11,806 14,958 13,589 8,690 7,947 6,702 

Net financing need for the 
year 

1,114 4,031 3,036 500 1,074 141 

 

The net financing need for commercial activities/non-financial investments included in the 

above table against expenditure is shown in the following table: 

Commercial activities/non-
financial investments £’000’s 

2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Latest 

Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

Capital Expenditure 1,114 3,285 1,973 500 0 0 

Financing Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Net financing need for the 
year 

 
1,114 

 
3,285 

 
1,973 

 
500 

 
0 

 
0 

Percentage of total net 
financing need  

100% 81% 65% 100% 0% 0% 

 

 

2.2 The Councils borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The 

CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid 

for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council’s 

indebtedness and so its underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure above, which 

has not immediately been paid for through a revenue of capital source, will increase the 

CFR. 

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a 
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with each 
assets life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they are used. 
 
The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. Public Finance Initiative (PFI) 
schemes, finance leases). Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s 
borrowing requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the 
Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes. The Council currently has no 
such schemes within the CFR. 
 

Page 41



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the CFR projections as 
follows: 
 

£000’s 2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Latest 

Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

Capital Financing Requirement 

CFR – HRA 68,427 68,427 68,427 68,427 68,427 68,427 

CFR – Non HRA 1,297 2,043 3,106 3,106 4,180 4,321 

Commercial activities/ 
non-financial investments* 

 
5,268 

 
8,553 

 
10,526 

 
11,026 

 
11,026 

 
11,026 

Total CFR 74,992 79,023 82,059 82,559 83,633 83,774 

Movement in CFR 1,100 4,031 3,036 500 1,074 141 

       

Movement in CFR represented by: 

Net financing need for the 
year (above) 

 
1,114 

 
4,031 

 
3,036 

 
500 

 
1,074 

 
141 

Less MRP/VRP and other 
financing movements 

 
(14) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Movement in CFR 1,100 4,031 3,036 500 1,074 141 

 
Of the total CFR, £67.456m relates to borrowing taken out with the Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB) as part of the Housing Self Financing changes. 
 
The projected increases in the CFR through to 2024/25 relates to the following capital 
expenditure: 
 

Welland Homes Loans and Equity   £4.758m 
Capital Acquisitions    £1.000m 
Garden Waste     £0.194m 
Environmental Services Operational  £2.830m 
                 £8.782m 
 

A key aspect of the regulatory and professional guidance is that elected members are aware 
of the size and scope of any commercial activity in relation to the authority’s overall financial 
position.  The capital expenditure figures shown in paragraph 2.1 and the details above 
demonstrate the scope of this activity and, by approving these figures, consider the scale 
proportionate to the Authority’s remaining activity. 
 
2.3 Core funds and expected investment balances 
 
The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital 
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing 
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from new sources 
(asset sales etc.).  Detailed below are estimates of the year end balances for each resource 
and anticipated day to day cash flow balances.   
  

Page 42



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

Working capital balances shown are estimated year end; these may be higher mid-year. 

 
2.4 Affordability prudential indicators 
 
The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential indicators, 
but within this framework, prudential indicators are required to assess the affordability of the 
capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment 
plans on the Council’s overall finances.  As part of the formal governance process, the 
Council approves the following indicators: 
 
Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 
 
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long-term 
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. Where financing 
costs to net revenue stream are negative, this is because the Council is earning more 
interest on its balances compared with interest paid on its borrowing. 
 

% 2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Latest 

Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

Non-HRA (2.56%) (3.05%) (1.82%) (1.75%) (1.74%) (1.71%) 

HRA 36.88% 35.59% 35.83% 35.54% 35.26% 34.99% 

 
The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in this 
budget report. 
 
HRA Ratios 
 

 
 

2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Latest 

Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

HRA debt £’000’s 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 

HRA revenues £’000,s 14,691 15,275 15,581 15,892 16,210 16,534 

Ratio of debt to revenues (%) 459 442 433 424 416 408 

 

 2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Latest 

Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

HRA debt £’000’s 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 

Number of HRA dwellings 3,776 3,780 3,785 3,795 3,798 3,801 

Debt per dwelling  (£) 17,864 17,846 17,822 17,775 17,761 17,747 

  

Year End Resources 
£’000’s 

2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Latest 

Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

General Fund Balance 2,078 2,078 2,078 2,078 2,078 2,078 

HRA Working Balance 19,809 22,357 19,269 18,533 18,007 17,717 

HRA Insurance Reserve 200 200 200 200 200 200 

Major Repairs Reserve 3,586 1,847 0 0 0 0 

Earmarked Reserves 8,012 3,727 3,971 3,681 3,328 3,382 

Capital Grants Unapplied 2,992 2,917 2,842 2,767 2,691 2,616 

Capital Receipts 3,061 299 300 302 304 305 

Total core funds 39,738 33,425 28,660 27,561 26,608 26,298 

Working Capital* 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 

Under Borrowing (7,536) (11,567) (14,603) (15,104) (16,178) (16,320) 

Expected investments 38,202 27,858 20,057 18,457 16,430 15,978 

Page 43



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

2.5 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 
 
The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund capital 
spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum revenue provision - 
MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments if required 
(voluntary revenue provision - VRP).   
 
MHCLG regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve an MRP 
Statement in advance of each year.  A variety of options are provided to councils, so long as 
there is a prudent provision. The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP 
Statement: 
 
For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will be Supported 
Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

 
• Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined in former MHCLG 

regulations (option 1)  
 

These options provide for an approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need (CFR) each 
year. 
 
From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance leases) the MRP 
policy will be: 
 

• Asset Life Method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in 
accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied for any expenditure 
capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction) (option 3) 

 
These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the asset’s 
life.  
 
There is no requirement on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) to make a minimum 
revenue provision but there is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made 
(although there are transitional arrangements in place). 
 
Repayments included in finance leases are applied as MRP. 
 
Any loans issued or equity investment made in Welland Homes and South Holland Local 
Housing Company which are classed as capital expenditure will increase the Council’s CFR.  
The Council will earmark the proceeds from the repayment of the loans or sale of equity 
interest to reduce the CFR and therefore will apply a nominal MRP charge of £1 on such 
loans and equity investments. This policy will be reviewed annually to ensure the approach 
remains prudent based on the Company’s financial position. If it is deemed that an additional 
charge is required to ensure prudence a voluntary revenue provision (VRP) will be made.  
 
Appropriation of Assets – Where assets do not change ownership and borrowing is not 
required; the Council will not apply MRP on the asset value transferred. 
 
The Item 8 Credit and Item 8 Debit (General) Determination 2017 (as updated by the Limits 
on Indebtedness (Revocation) Determination 2018) requires that the HRA CFR  is reduced 
by the amount of any capital receipt arising from the disposal of an interest in housing land  
(other than Right to Buy sales or stock transfers) that was used to meet capital expenditure 
on any asset for which the authority does not have a duty to account for in the HRA, unless 
the expenditure relates to either regeneration or affordable housing and in which case the 
reduction is not required.  

Page 44



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

 
The effect of these provisions is that the HRA is compensated for the use of HRA capital 
receipts by a transfer of an equivalent amount of its underlying need to borrow from the HRA 
CFR to the General Fund CFR. Where this is the case, as this does not give rise to either 
new capital expenditure or serve to increase the aggregate CFR for the Council, additional 
MRP will not be charged to the General Fund. 
 
MRP Overpayments - A change introduced by the revised MHCLG MRP Guidance was the 
allowance that any charges made over the statutory minimum revenue provision (MRP), 
voluntary revenue provision or overpayments, can, if needed, be reclaimed in later years if 
deemed necessary or prudent.  In order for these sums to be reclaimed for use in the 
budget, this policy must disclose the cumulative overpayment made each year.  As at 31 
March 2020 there were no VRP overpayments for consideration. 
 

3. BORROWING 
 
The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service activity of the 
Council.  The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in 
accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet 
this service activity and the Council’s capital strategy.  This will involve both the organisation 
of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing 
facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the current and 
projected debt positions and the annual investment strategy. 
 

3.1 Current portfolio position 
 
The overall treasury management portfolio as at 31 March 2020 and the position as at 31 
December 2020 are shown below for both borrowing and investments.  
 

 

Actual Actual Current Current

31.3.20 31.3.20 31.12.20 31.12.20

Treasury Investments £000 %  £000 %  

Banks 21,514 57% 21,996 44%

Building Societies - Rated 3,000 8% 9,000 18%

Local Authorities 2,000 5% 5,000 10%

DMADF (H.M.Treasury) 0 0% 0 0%

Money Market Funds 6,190 16% 9,000 18%

Certificates of Deposit 5,000 13% 5,000 10%

Total Managed In House 37,704 100% 49,996 100%

Bond Funds 0 0% 0 0%

Property Funds 0 0% 0 0%

Total Managed Externally 0 0% 0 0%

Total Treasury Investments 37,704 100% 49,996 100%

Treasury External Borrowing

Local Authorities 0 0% 0 0%

PWLB 67,456 100% 67,456 100%

LOBO's 0 0% 0 0%

Total External Borrowing 67,456 100% 67,456 100%

Net Treasury Investments / (Borrowing) -29,752 0 -17,460 0

TREASURY PORTFOLIO

Page 45



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

The Council’s forward projections for borrowing are summarised below. The table shows the 
actual external debt, against the underlying capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing 
Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.  
 

£’000’s 2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Latest 

Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

Debt at 1 April  67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 

Expected change in Debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Other long-term liabilities 
(OLTL) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Expected change in OLTL 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Actual gross debt at 31 
March  

67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 

74,992 79,023 82,059 82,559 83,633 83,774 

Under / (over) borrowing 7,536 11,567 14,603 15,103 16,177 16,318 

 
Within the range of prudential indicators, there are a number of key indicators to ensure that 
the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  One of these is that the Council 
needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the 
CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2021/22 and the 
following two financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future 
years, but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes. 
 
The Section 151 Officer reports that the Council complied with this prudential indicator in the 
current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  This view takes into account 
current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this budget report. 
 
3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 
 
The operational boundary - This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally 
expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be 
lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-
borrowing by other cash resources. 
 

Operational boundary 
£’000’s 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

Debt 81,000 81,000 81,000 81,000 81,000 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Commercial activities/ 
non-financial investments 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

Total 87,000 87,000 87,000 87,000 87,000 

 
The authorised limit for external debt – This is a key prudential indicator and represents a 
control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a legal limit beyond which 
external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council.  It 
reflects the level of external debt, which while not desired, could be afforded in the short 
term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.   
 

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 
2003. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’ 
plans, or those of a specific council, although this power has never been exercised. 

Page 46



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

 
2. As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the following 

indicators, as shown below: 
 

Authorised limit  
£’000’s 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

Debt 85,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Commercial activities/ 
non-financial investments 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

Total 91,000 91,000 91,000 91,000 91,000 

 
 
3.3 Prospect for interest rates (as at 9/11/20) 
 
The Council has appointed Link Group as its treasury advisor and part of their service is to 
assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. Following the conclusion of the 
review of Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) margins over gilt yields on 25/11/20, all 
forecasts have been reduced by 1%.   
 
The following table gives the Link Groups’ central view: 
 

 Bank Rate 
% 

PWLB Borrowing Rates% 
(including certainty rate adjustment) 

  5 year 10 year 25 year 50 year 

Dec 2020 0.10 0.80 1.10 1.50 1.30 

Mar 2021 0.10 0.80 1.10 1.50 1.30 

Jun 2021 0.10 0.80 1.10 1.60 1.40 

Sep 2021 0.10 0.80 1.10 1.60 1.40 

Dec 2021 0.10 0.80 1.10 1.60 1.40 

Mar 2022 0.10 0.90 1.20 1.60 1.40 

Jun 2022 0.10 0.90 1.20 1.70 1.50 

Sep 2022 0.10 0.90 1.20 1.70 1.50 

Dec 2022 0.10 0.90 1.20 1.70 1.50 

Mar 2023 0.10 0.90 1.20 1.70 1.50 

Jun 2023 0.10 1.00 1.30 1.80 1.60 

Sep 2023 0.10 1.00 1.30 1.80 1.60 

Dec 2023 0.10 1.00 1.30 1.80 1.60 

Mar 2024 0.10 1.00 1.30 1.80 1.60 

 
Commentary from Link Group 
 
The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and economies 
around the world. After the Bank of England took emergency action in March to cut Bank 
Rate to first 0.25%, and then to 0.10%, it left Bank Rate unchanged at its subsequent 
meetings to 5th November, although some forecasters had suggested a cut into negative 
territory could happen. However, the Governor of the Bank of England has made it clear that 
he currently thinks that such a move would do more damage than good and that more 
quantitative easing is the favoured tool if further action becomes necessary. As shown in the 
forecast table above, no increase in Bank Rate is expected as economic recovery is 
expected to be only gradual and, therefore, prolonged. 
  

Page 47



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

Gilt yields / PWLB rates - There was much speculation during the second half of 2019 that 
bond markets were in a bubble, which was driving bond prices up, and yields down to 
historically very low levels. The context for that was a heightened expectation that the US 
could have been heading for a recession in 2020. In addition, there were growing 
expectations of a downturn in world economic growth, especially due to fears around the 
impact of the trade war between the US and China, together with inflation generally at low 
levels in most countries and expected to remain subdued. Combined, these conditions were 
conducive to very low bond yields.  While inflation targeting by the major central banks has 
been successful over the last thirty years in lowering inflation expectations, the real 
equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen considerably due to the high level of borrowing by 
consumers. This means that central banks do not need to raise rates as much now to have a 
major impact on consumer spending, inflation, etc. The consequence of this has been the 
gradual lowering of the overall level of interest rates and bond yields in financial markets 
over the last 30 years.  Over the year prior to the coronavirus crisis, this has seen many 
bond yields up to 10 years turn negative in the Eurozone. In addition, there has, at times, 
been an inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields have fallen below shorter 
term yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a recession.  The other side of this coin 
is that bond prices are elevated as investors would be expected to be moving out of riskier 
assets i.e. shares, in anticipation of a downturn in corporate earnings and so selling out of 
equities. 
 
Gilt yields had therefore already been on a generally falling trend up until the coronavirus 
crisis hit western economies during March 2020. After gilt yields spiked up during the 
financial crisis in March, we have seen these yields fall sharply to unprecedented lows as 
investors panicked during March in selling shares in anticipation of impending recessions in 
western economies, and moved cash into safe haven assets i.e. government bonds. 
However, major western central banks took rapid action to deal with excessive stress in 
financial markets during March, and started massive quantitative easing purchases of 
government bonds: this also acted to put downward pressure on government bond yields at 
a time when there has been a huge and quick expansion of government expenditure 
financed by issuing government bonds. Such unprecedented levels of issuance in “normal” 
times would have caused bond yields to rise sharply.  Gilt yields and PWLB rates have been 
at remarkably low rates so far during 2020/21. 
 
As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates above shows, there is expected to be 
little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next two years as it will take economies, 
including the UK, a prolonged period to recover all the momentum they have lost in the 
sharp recession caused during the coronavirus shut down period. From time to time, gilt 
yields, and therefore PWLB rates, can be subject to exceptional levels of volatility due to 
geo-political, sovereign debt crisis, emerging market developments and sharp changes in 
investor sentiment, (as shown on 9th November when the first results of a successful 
COVID-19 vaccine trial were announced). Such volatility could occur at any time during the 
forecast period. 
 
Investment and borrowing rates 
 

• Investment returns are likely to remain exceptionally low during 2021/22 with little 
increase in the following two years. 

 
• Borrowing interest rates fell to historically very low rates as a result of the COVID 

crisis and the quantitative easing operations of the Bank of England: indeed, gilt yields 
up to 6 years were negative during most of the first half of 2020/21. The policy of 
avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances has served local 
authorities well over the last few years.  The unexpected increase of 100 bps in PWLB 
rates on top of the then current margin over gilt yields of 80 bps in October 2019 

Page 48



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

required an initial major rethink of local authority treasury management strategy and 
risk management.  However, in March 2020, the Government started a consultation 
process for reviewing the margins over gilt rates for PWLB borrowing for different 
types of local authority capital expenditure. (Please note that Link has concerns over 
this approach, as the fundamental principle of local authority borrowing is that 
borrowing is a treasury management activity and individual sums that are borrowed 
are not linked to specific capital projects.)  It also introduced the following rates for 
borrowing for different types of capital expenditure: - 

 
• PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points (G+200bps) 
• PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points (G+180bps) 
• PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 
• Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 
 

• As a consequence of these increases in margins, many local authorities decided to 
refrain from PWLB borrowing unless it was for HRA or local infrastructure financing, 
until such time as the review of margins was concluded. 

 
• On 25 November, the Chancellor announced the conclusion to the review of margins 

over gilt yields for PWLB rates; the standard and certainty margins were reduced by 
1% but a prohibition was introduced to deny access to borrowing from the PWLB for 
any local authority which had purchase of assets for yield in its three year capital 
programme. The new margins over gilt yields are as follows: -. 

 

 PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 

 PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80 basis points (G+80bps) 

 PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 

 PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 

 Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 
 
• Borrowing for capital expenditure.   As Link’s long-term forecast for Bank Rate is 2.00%, 

and all PWLB rates are under 2.00%, there is now value in borrowing from the PWLB for all 
types of capital expenditure for all maturity periods, especially as current rates are at 
historic lows.  However, greater value can be obtained in borrowing for shorter maturity 
periods so the Council will assess its risk appetite in conjunction with budgetary pressures 
to reduce total interest costs.  Longer-term borrowing could also be undertaken for the 
purpose of certainty where that is desirable. 

 
• While this authority will not be able to avoid borrowing to finance new capital 

expenditure and the rundown of reserves, there will be a cost of carry (the difference 
between higher borrowing costs and lower investment returns) to any new borrowing 
that causes a temporary increase in cash balances as this position will, most likely, 
incur a revenue cost. 

 
(End of Link Group commentary) 
 
  

Page 49



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

3.4 Borrowing Strategy 

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that the 
capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been fully funded with 
loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has been used 
as a temporary measure.  This strategy is prudent as investment returns are low and 
counterparty risk is still an issue that needs to be considered. 
 
Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be adopted 
with the 2021/22 treasury operations. The Section 151 Officer will monitor interest rates in 
financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances: 
  

• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in borrowing rates, then 
borrowing will be postponed. 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in borrowing rates 

than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the rate of 

increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world economic activity, or 

a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised. 

Most likely, fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are lower than they are 

projected to be in the next few years. 

 
Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making body at the next available 
opportunity. 
 
3.5 Maturity structure of borrowing 
 
These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling 
due for refinancing, and are required for upper and lower limits.  The Council is asked to 
approve the following treasury indicators and limits: 
 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2021/22 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years  0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years  0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years  0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years  0% 100% 

Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2021/22 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years  0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years  0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years  0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years  0% 100% 

 

Page 50



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

3.6 Policy on borrowing in advance of need 
 
The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in order to profit 
from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be 
within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will be considered 
carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can 
ensure the security of such funds.  
 
Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior appraisal and 
subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting mechanism. 
 
3.7 Debt rescheduling 
 
Rescheduling of current borrowing in our debt portfolio is unlikely to occur during current 
market conditions. If rescheduling is done, it will be reported to Cabinet at the earliest 
meeting following its action. 
 
3.8 New financial institutions as a source of borrowing and / or types of borrowing 
 
Consideration will be given to sourcing funding at cheaper rates from the following: 
 

• Local authorities (primarily shorter dated maturities) 
• Financial institutions (primarily insurance companies and pension funds but also 

some banks, out of spot or forward dates) 
• UK Municipal Bonds Agency  
 

 
3.9 Approved Sources of Long and Short term Borrowing 
 
On Balance Sheet Fixed Variable 
   

PWLB   

Municipal Bond Agency    

Local authorities   

Banks   

Pension funds   

Insurance companies   

 

Market (long-term)   

Market (temporary)   

Market (LOBOs)   

Stock issues   

 

Local temporary   

Local Bonds  

Local authority bills                                                                      

Overdraft   

Negotiable Bonds   

 

Internal (capital receipts & revenue balances)   

Commercial Paper  

Medium Term Notes   

Finance leases   

Page 51



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

4. ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY  

 
4.1 Investment policy – management of risk 

 

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: 

 

• MHCLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) 

• CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral 

Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”)  

• CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018   

 

The Council’s funds are managed by PSPSL with reference to a detailed cash flow forecast 

on a daily basis for the current year. Protocols are in place to govern the movement of funds 

within specific limits.  

 

The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and then 

yield, (return). The Council will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments 

commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity and within the Council’s risk 

appetite. In the current economic climate it is considered appropriate to keep investments 

short term to cover cash flow needs. However, where appropriate (from an internal as well 

as external perspective), the Council will also consider the value available in periods up to 

12 months with high credit rated financial institutions, as well as wider range fund options. 

  

The above guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA place a high priority on the management 

of risk. This authority has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk and defines its risk 

appetite by the following means: - 

 

 Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of highly 

creditworthy counterparties.  This also enables diversification and thus avoidance of 

concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the short term 

and long-term ratings.  

 

 Other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an 

institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both 

a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political environments in 

which institutions operate. The assessment will also take account of information that 

reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve this consideration the Council will 

engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such as “credit 

default swaps” (CDS) and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.  

 

 Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and 

other such information pertaining to the financial sector in order to establish the most 

robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties. 

 

 This authority has defined the list of types of investment instruments that the 

treasury management team are authorised to use. There are two lists in Appendix 5.2 

under the categories of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments.  

  

Page 52



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

 Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and subject to 

a maturity limit of one year or have less than a year left to run to maturity if 

originally they were originally classified as being non-specified investments solely 

due to the maturity period exceeding one year. 

 

 Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, may be for 

periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex instruments which 

require greater consideration by members and officers before being authorised 

for use.  

 

 Non-specified investments limit. The Council has determined that it will limit the 

maximum total exposure to non-specified investments to £5m of the total investment 

portfolio, (see paragraph 4.3). 

 

 Lending limits, The maximum total investments to any individual financial institution 

or its parent group is £5m. The maximum limit for individual money market funds is 

£10m. There is no maximum limit for deposits with the UK Debt Management Agency 

Deposit Facility (DMADF) as this is effectively the UK Government. The maximum 

permitted duration of investments for each institution will be determined in accordance 

with paragraph 4.2. 

 

 Transaction limits are set for each type of investment in Appendix 5.2. 

 

 This authority will set a limit for the amount of its investments which are invested for 

longer than 365 days, (see paragraph 4.4).   

 

 Investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a specified 

minimum sovereign rating, (see paragraph 4.3). 

 

 PSPSL has engaged external consultants, (see paragraph 1.5), to provide expert 

advice on how to optimise an appropriate balance of security, liquidity and yield, given 

the risk appetite of this authority in the context of the expected level of cash balances 

and need for liquidity throughout the year. 

 

 All investments will be denominated in sterling. 

 

 As a result of the change in accounting standards for 2020/21 under IFRS 9, this 

authority will consider the implications of investment instruments which could result in 

an adverse movement in the value of the amount invested and resultant charges at the 

end of the year to the General Fund. 

 

However, this authority will also pursue value for money in treasury management and will 

monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks for investment 

performance, (see paragraph 4.5). Regular monitoring of investment performance will be 

carried out during the year. 

  

Page 53



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

Changes in risk management policy from last year. 

 

The £5m maximum investment limit with the UK Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility 

has been amended to no maximum limit as this is effectively the UK Government. 

 

4.2 Creditworthiness Policy 

 

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by the Link Group.  This service 

employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from the three main credit 

rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of 

counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:  

 

• “watches” and “outlooks” from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries. 

 

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, and any assigned Watches and Outlooks 

in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS spreads. The 

end product of this is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative 

creditworthiness of counterparties.  These colour codes are used by the Council to 

determine the suggested duration for investments.   The Council will therefore use 

counterparties within the following durational bands:  

 

• Yellow  5 years* 

• Dark Pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit score of 1.25  

• Light Pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit score of 1.5 

• Purple   2 years 

• Blue   1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK Banks) 

• Orange  1 year 

• Red   6 months 

• Green   100 days  

• No colour  not to be used  

 

* Please note: the yellow colour category is for UK Government debt, or its equivalent, 

money market funds and collateralised deposits where the collateral is UK Government debt. 

 

The Link creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information other than just primary 

ratings. Furthermore, by using a risk weighted scoring system, it does not give undue 

preponderance to just one agency’s ratings. 

  

Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short Term rating 

(Fitch or equivalents) of F1 and a Long Term rating of A-.  There may be occasions when the 

counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower than these ratings but may 

still be used.  In these instances consideration will be given to the whole range of ratings 

available, or other topical market information, to support their use. 

  

All credit ratings will be monitored daily. PSPSL is alerted to changes to ratings of all three 

agencies through its use of the Link creditworthiness service. 

 

Page 54



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

• if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting the 

Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn 

immediately. 

• in addition to the use of credit ratings PSPSL will be advised of information in 

movements in CDS spreads against the iTraxx European Financials benchmark and 

other market data on a daily basis provided exclusively to it by Link.  Extreme market 

movements may result in downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s 

lending list. 

 

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition this Council 

will also use market data and market information, as well as information on any external 

support for banks to help support its decision making process. 

 

4.3 Other limits 
 

Due care will be taken to consider the exposure of the Council’s total investment portfolio to 

non-specified investments, countries, groups and sectors.   

 Non-specified investment limit. The Council has determined that it will limit the 

maximum total exposure to non-specified investments to £5m of the total investment 

portfolio. 

 

 Country limit. The Council has determined that it will only use approved 

counterparties from the United Kingdom or countries with a minimum sovereign credit 

rating of AA- from Fitch (or equivalent). The list of countries that qualify using this 

credit criteria as at the date of this report are shown in Appendix 5.3.  This list will be 

added to, or deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this 

policy. 

 

 Other limits. In addition: 

 no more than £5m will be placed with any non-UK country at any time; 

 limits in place above will apply to a group of companies; 

 sector limits will be monitored regularly for appropriateness 

 

4.4 Investment strategy 

In-House Funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash 

flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments up 

to 12 months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by investing for longer periods. Where 

cash sums can be identified that could be invested for longer periods, the value to be 

obtained from longer term investments will be carefully assessed.  

 

• If it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly within the time horizon being 

considered, then consideration will be given to keeping most investments as being 

short term or variable.  

• Conversely, if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to fall within that time period, 

consideration will be given to locking in higher rates currently obtainable, for longer 

periods. 

  

Page 55



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

Investment returns expectations. 

Bank Rate is unlikely to rise from 0.10% for a considerable period.  It is very difficult to say 

when it may start rising so it may be best to assume that investment earnings from money 

market-related instruments will be sub 0.50% for the foreseeable future. 

 

The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments placed for 

periods up to about three months during each financial year are as follows: 

 

 2020/21   0.10% 

 2021/22    0.10% 

 2022/23    0.10%  

 2023/24  0.25% 

 2024/25  0.75%  

 

The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably relatively even, but is 

subject to major uncertainty due to the virus. It may also be affected by what, if any, deal the 

UK agrees as part of Brexit. 

 

There is relatively little UK domestic risk of increases or decreases in Bank Rate and shorter 

term PWLB rates until 2023/24 at the earliest. 

 

Negative investment rates. 

While the Bank of England said in August / September 2020 that it is unlikely to introduce a 
negative Bank Rate, at least in the next 6 -12 months, some deposit accounts are already 
offering negative rates for shorter periods.  As part of the response to the pandemic and 
lockdown, the Bank and the Government have provided financial markets and businesses 
with plentiful access to credit, either directly or through commercial banks.  In addition, the 
Government has provided large sums of grants to local authorities to help deal with the 
COVID crisis; this has caused some local authorities to have sudden large increases in cash 
balances searching for an investment home, some of which was only very short term until 
those sums were able to be passed on.  
 
As for money market funds (MMFs), yields have continued to drift lower. Some managers 
have already resorted to trimming fee levels to ensure that net yields for investors remain in 
positive territory where possible and practical. Investor cash flow uncertainty, and the need 
to maintain liquidity in these unprecedented times, has meant there is a surfeit of money 
swilling around at the very short end of the market. This has seen a number of market 
operators, now including the DMADF, offer nil or negative rates for very short term 
maturities. This is not universal, and MMFs are still offering a marginally positive return, as 
are a number of financial institutions for investments at the very short end of the yield curve.  
 
Inter-local authority lending and borrowing rates have also declined due to the surge in the 
levels of cash seeking a short-term home at a time when many local authorities are probably 
having difficulties over accurately forecasting when disbursements of funds received will 
occur or when further large receipts will be received from the Government. 
 
Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for greater than 365 

days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce 

the need for early sale of an investment, and are based on the availability of funds after each 

year-end. 

 

Page 56



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the treasury indicator and 

limit, as follows: 

 

Upper limit for principal sums invested for longer than 365 days 

£m 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Principal sums invested for 
longer than 365 days 

£m 
5,000 

£m 
5,000 

£m 
5,000 

£m 
5,000 

Current investments as at 
31/12/20 in excess of 1 year 
maturing in each year 

 
 

0 

 
 
0 

 
 

0 

 
 
0 

 

Loans to and equity purchases in Welland Homes do not count towards this limit.  

 

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business reserve 

instant access and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated deposits 

(overnight to 100 days) in order to benefit from the compounding of interest. 

 

4.5 Investment risk benchmark 

 

The Council has not adopted any formal benchmarks in this area, as Officers believe that 

decisions on counterparties and maximum investment levels are adequate to monitor the 

current and trend position, and amend the operational strategy to manage risk as conditions 

change.   

 

This Council will use an investment benchmark to assess the investment performance. The 

Council is appreciative that the provision of LIBOR and associated LIBID rates is expected to 

cease at the end of 2021. It will work with its advisors in determining suitable replacement 

investment benchmarks ahead of this cessation. 

 

4.6 End of year investment report 

 

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as part of its 

Annual Treasury Report. 

  

Page 57



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

5. APPENDICES 

5.1 Interest rate forecasts 

5.2 Treasury management practice 1 – credit and counterparty risk management  

5.3 Approved countries for investments 

5.4 Treasury management scheme of delegation 

5.5 The treasury management role of the section 151 officer

Page 58



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

APPENDIX 5.1: Interest Rate Forecasts 2020 – 2024 (provided by Link Group as at 09/11/20) 

The PWLB rates below are based on the new margins over gilts announced on 26th November 2020.  PWLB forecasts shown below have taken 
into account the 20 basis point certainty rate reduction effective as of the 1st November 2012. 

 

P
age 59



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

APPENDIX 5.2 Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and Counterparty Risk 

Management 

 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling denominated, with 

maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where 

applicable. (Non-specified investments which would be specified investments apart from 

originally being for a period longer than 12 months, will be classified as being specified once 

the remaining period to maturity falls to under twelve months.) 

 

 
Minimum ‘High’ Credit 

Criteria 
Use 

Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility  

N/A 
In-house (No 
maximum limit) 

UK Local Authority Deposits  N/A In-house 

Term Deposits – banks and building 
societies  

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 

Treasury Bills UK sovereign rating In-house 

Certificates of Deposit or Corporate 
Bonds issued by banks and building 
societies 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

AAA 
In-house buy and 
hold 

Money Market Funds – CCLA (Church, 
Charities & Local Authority) 

AAA 
In-house (£10m 
limit for cash flow 
purposes) 

Money Market Funds  CNAV 

(Constant Net Asset Value) AAA In-house 

Money Market Funds  LVAV (Low 

Volatility Asset Value) AAA In-house 

Money Market Funds  VNAV 

(Variable Net Asset Value) AAA In-house 

 

Term deposits with nationalised banks and banks and building societies. 

 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max of total 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

UK  part 
nationalised banks 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£5m 1 year 

Banks part 
nationalised by AAA 
or AA- sovereign 
rating countries – 
non UK 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£5m 1 year 

Page 60



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

 

 

 

If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period should not 

exceed one year in aggregate.   

 

Accounting treatment of investments.  The accounting treatment may differ from the 

underlying cash transactions arising from investment decisions made by this Council. To 

ensure that the Council is protected from any adverse revenue impact, which may arise from 

these differences, we will review the accounting implications of new transactions before they 

are undertaken. 

 

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not meet the 

Specified Investment criteria.  A maximum of £5m will be held in aggregate in non-specified 

investments. 

 

Maturities of ANY period 

 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Fixed Term Deposits with 
variable rate and variable 
maturities: -Structured 
deposits 

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA- and 
minimum colour of 
green on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house  100% 5 year 

UK Government Gilts UK sovereign rating 
In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 5 year 

Sovereign Bond issues 
(other than the UK govt.) 

AAA 
In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 5 year 

Bond issuance issued by 
a financial institution which 
is explicitly guaranteed by  
the UK Government  (e.g. 
National Rail)  

UK sovereign rating 
In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 5 year 

Collateralised Deposits 
(see note 1) 

UK  Sovereign 
rating  

In-house  100% 5 year 

 

 

Page 61



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

 

Note 1. as collateralised deposits are backed by collateral of AAA rated local authority Lender 
Option Borrower Option (LOBO)’s, this investment instrument is regarded as being a AAA rated 
investment as it is equivalent to lending to a local authority. 
 

Maturities in excess of 1 year 

 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Max %  of 
non-
specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Term Deposits – UK local 
authorities  

N/A 
In-
house 

100% 5 year 

Parish Councils (SHDC 
Community Reserve) 

N/A 
In-
house 

100% 15 Year 

Term Deposits – banks and 
building societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA- and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house 

100% 5 year 

Certificates of Deposit 
issued by banks and 
building societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA- and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house  

100% 5 year 

Corporate bonds issued by 
banks and building societies 

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA- and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house  

100% 5 year 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies 
(OEICs): - 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond 
Funds with a credit score 
of 1.25 

 
Long-term AAA 
 

In-house 100% 1 years 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond 
Funds with a credit score 
of 1.5 

 
Long-term AAA 
 

In-house 100% 1 years 

Bond Funds 
Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

Gilt Funds 
UK Sovereign 
Rating 

In-house 100% 5 years 

Page 62



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

AAA 
In-
house  

100% 5 year 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs) 

Property Fund  
In-
House 

£5m 
Separate 
approval 
required 

Corporate Bond Fund  
In-
House 

£5m 
Separate 
approval 
required 

 

The use of property funds can be deemed capital expenditure, and as such will be an application 
(spending) of capital resources. This Authority will seek guidance on the status of any fund it may 
consider using. Appropriate due diligence will also be undertaken before investment of this type is 
undertaken. 
 
Loans and investments with Welland Homes and South Holland Local Housing Company will not 
count towards the Non-Specified Investment limit. 
 
The maximum total investment to any individual financial institution or its parent group is £5m and 
the limit with Money Market Funds is £10m. 
 
Lloyds Bank provides banking services to the Council and the above limits do not include the day 
to day balance in the Council’s current account. 
 
Whilst these are maximum limits, under normal circumstances the Section 151 Officer will ensure 
lower limits are maintained. The higher limits are required to allow flexibility in the movement of 
funds if a particular issue or circumstance arises e.g. global banking crisis.

Page 63



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

APPENDIX 5.3 Approved countries for investments (as at 01/12/20) 

This list is based on those countries which have sovereign ratings of AA- or higher (we show 

the lowest rating from Fitch, Moody’s and S&P) and also, (except - at the time of writing - for 

Hong Kong, Norway and Luxembourg), have banks operating in sterling markets which have 

credit ratings of green or above in the Link credit worthiness service. 

Based on lowest available rating: 

 

AAA                      
 Australia 

 Denmark 

 Germany 

 Luxembourg 

 Netherlands 

 Norway 

 Singapore 

 Sweden 

 Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

 Canada 

 Finland 

 U.S.A. 

 

AA 

 Abu Dhabi (UAE) 

 France 

 Hong Kong 

 

AA- 

 Belgium 

 Hong Kong 

 Qatar  

 U.K. 

 

 
  

Page 64



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

APPENDIX 5.4 - Treasury management scheme of delegation 

 

(i) Full council 

 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and activities 

 approval of annual strategy. 

 approval of / amendments to the council’s adopted clauses, treasury management policy 
statement and treasury management practices 

 budget consideration and approval 

 approval of the division of responsibilities as contained in the Financial Regulations 

 

(ii) Cabinet and Governance & Audit Committee 

 reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body. 

 receiving and reviewing the annual strategy and making recommendations to the 
responsible body. 

 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on recommendations. 

 

SCRUTINY AND MONITORING 
  
Council delegates the scrutiny and monitoring of the Treasury Management function to the 
Governance and Audit Committee.  As a minimum they will receive a Mid Term Treasury report 
on investment issues and performance. Training will be made available for members of the 
Governance and Audit Committee to ensure they have the necessary skills to undertake this role.  
 
The Governance and Audit Committee will also have access to professional and independent 
advice and support as required in order to undertake this role. 
  

Page 65



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

APPENDIX 5.5 - The treasury management role of the Section 151 Officer and deputy 

The Section 151 Officer responsibilities are as follows: 
 
 recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, reviewing the 

same regularly, and monitoring compliance; 
 submitting regular treasury management policy reports; 
 submitting budgets and budget variations; 
 receiving and reviewing management information reports; 
 reviewing the performance of the treasury management function; 
 ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective 

division of responsibilities within the treasury management function; 
 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; 
 recommending the appointment of external service providers; 
 preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, non-

financial investments and treasury management, with a long term timeframe ; 
 ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in the 

long term and provides value for money; 
 ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial 

investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority; 
 ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on non-

financial assets and their financing; 
 ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not undertake a 

level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of risk compared to its 
financial resources; 

 ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, monitoring 
and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long term liabilities; 

 provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including material 
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees ; 

 ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures taken 
on by an authority; 

 ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally provided, 
to carry out the above; 

 creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non treasury 
investments will be carried out and managed, to include the following :- 
 
 Risk management (TMP1 and schedules), including investment and risk 

management criteria for any material non-treasury investment portfolios; 
 Performance measurement and management (TMP2 and schedules), including 

methodology and criteria for assessing the performance and success of non-treasury 
investments;      

 Decision making, governance and organisation (TMP5 and schedules), including a 
statement of the governance requirements for decision making in relation to non-
treasury investments; and arrangements to ensure that appropriate professional due 
diligence is carried out to support decision making; 

 Reporting and management information (TMP6 and schedules), including where and 
how often monitoring reports are taken; 

 Training and qualifications (TMP10 and schedules), including how the relevant 
knowledge and skills in relation to non-treasury investments will be arranged. 

  

Page 66



  APPENDIX B 

 
 

Public Sector Partnership Services Limited is responsible for the provision of: 
 

 treasury management strategy statements and practices for approval  

 regular treasury management policy reports 

 budget and budget variations 

 management information reports 

 adequate treasury management resources and skills, and effective division of 
responsibilities within the treasury management function, and; 

 arranging the appointment of external treasury management advisors.  

 

Where the use of particular instant access accounts, notice accounts and money market 
funds has been approved by the Section 151 Officer, PSPSL treasury officers have delegated 
authority to withdraw and deposit funds within the agreed limits contained in this strategy. 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC  
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee 14 January 2021 
 
Author:  Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Subject: Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 
 
Purpose: This report examines the progress made between 11 November 2020 and 5 

January 2021 in relation to the completion of the revised Annual Internal Audit 
Plan for 2020/21. 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That members note the progress of the internal audit plan of work for 2020/21. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receive updates on progress made against the 

annual internal audit plan. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements to 
assist the Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal audit activity.  

 
1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to report to the 

Governance and Audit Committee the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed 
plan, including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting 
at South Holland is to each meeting.  

 
To comply with the above the report identifies:   

o Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 
o Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;  
o Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 
o Performance measures to date. 

 
2.0 CURRENT PROGRESS 
 
2.1 The current position in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 

is shown within the report. 
 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Progress 

Report on Internal Audit Activity.  In doing so, the Committee is ensuring that the Internal 
Audit Service remains compliant with professional auditing standards and are fulfilling their 
terms of reference. 
 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are 

working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7.



4.2 Financial  
 
4.2.1 The Internal Audit Plan is being delivered within the approved budget for 2020/21. 
 
4.3 Risk Management  
 
44.3.1 Internal Audit planning starts with the Council’s key risks, which then directs the audit plan 

for the financial year. Internal Audit reports then identify risks and control weaknesses 
within the Council which are highlighted in this report, with appropriate management action 
being agreed to mitigate these risks within agreed timeframes. 

 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager for South Holland DC 
Telephone Number: 01508 533873 
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager for 
South Holland DC 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 
 

 

Page 70



   

 

Page 1 of 6 
 

APPENDIX A 

Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
South Holland District Council 

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 

Period Covered: 12 November 2020 to 5 January 2021 

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland District 
Council 

 

CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................ 2 

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ................... 2 

4.  THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK ........................................................... 2 

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK .................. 4 

 

  

Page 71



   

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report is issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in 
relation to the internal audit activity.  

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to 
report to the Audit Committee on the performance of internal audit relative to its plan, 
including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of 
reporting and the specific content are for the Authority to determine. 

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes:  

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 

 Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 

 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 

 Performance Indicator outcomes to date. 

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

2.1 The revised Annual Internal Audit Plan was approved on 26 November 2020, to 
respond to the Coronavirus Pandemic.  

3.  PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK 

3.1 Appendix 1 covers progress made against the revised 2020/21 internal audit plan. A 
total of 85 days of work has been allocated to Eastern Internal Audit Services (EIAS) 
to be delivered by TIAA ltd. A total of 65 days has been allocated to Audit 
Lincolnshire (formally East Lindsay District Council).  

Audit Lincolnshire’s coverage includes the testing of key financial systems managed 
by Public Sector Partnership Services (previously Compass Point Business Services) 
on behalf of South Holland District Council.  The Head of Internal Audit places 
reliance on the work carried out by Audit Lincolnshire when concluding on the overall 
Internal Audit Opinion. Progress in relation to completion of this work is provided to 
the Committee in quarter four.    

3.2 In summary:  

A total of 36 days of programmed work has been completed by EIAS, equating to 
45% of the (revised) EIAS Audit Plan for 2020/21, in line with the scheduled plan for 
the majority of audits to be completed in Q3 and Q4.  

A total of 40 days of programmed work has been completed by Audit Lincolnshire, 
equating to 62%, in line with the scheduled internal audit plan. 

4.  THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK 

4.1 On completion of each individual audit an assurance level is awarded using the 
following definitions: 

 Substantial Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of 
suitably designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to 
manage the risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the 
process, and which at the time of our review were being consistently applied. 

 Reasonable Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a series of 
internal controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the 

Page 72



   

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

organisation’s management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of 
the objectives of the process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls to 
mitigate these risks. 

 Limited Assurance: Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are 
insufficient to ensure that the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to 
the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant 
improvements are required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
controls to mitigate these risks. 

 No Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown 
or absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them 
to manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the 
process. Immediate action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate 
these risks. 

4.2 Recommendations made on completion of audit work are prioritised using the 
following definitions: 

 Urgent (priority one): Fundamental control issue on which action to implement 
should be taken within 1 month. 

 Important (priority two): Control issue on which action to implement should be 
taken within 3 months. 

 Needs attention (priority three): Control issue on which action to implement should 
be taken within 6 months. 

4.3 In addition, on completion of audit work “Operational Effectiveness Matters” are 
proposed, these set out matters identified during the assignment where there may be 
opportunities for service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational 
efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services. These are for 
management to consider and are not part of the follow up process. 

4.4 No reports have been finalised to date, however the plan of work is on track to the 
revised timetable.  

 5. PERFORMANCE MEASURES – Eastern Internal Audit Services  

5.1 The Internal Audit Services contract includes a suite of key performance measures 
against which TIAA will be reviewed on a quarterly basis.  

5.2 There are individual requirements for performance in relation to each measure; 
however, performance will be assessed on an overall basis as follows: 

 9-11 KPIs have met target = Green Status. 

 5-8 KPIs have met target = Amber Status. 

 4 or below have met target = Red Status. 

Where performance is amber or red a Performance Improvement Plan will be 
developed by TIAA and agreed with the Internal Audit Consortium Manager to ensure 
that appropriate action is taken. 

 

Page 73



   

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

5.3 A quarter two and three report has been provided by the contractor to the Internal 
Audit Manager for review. At time of writing, planned work is on track to be 
completed in line with the agreed timeframes except for the position statement on 
Procurement and Contract Management and assurance work on Accounts 
Receivable. We do not expect the issuing of these draft reports to be significantly 
delayed. Performance will continue to be closely monitored to ensure that the plan 
remains on track for completion by 31 March 2021.   

Page 74



   

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK  

 

 

 

 

P
age 75



   

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

P
age 76



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee, 14 January 2021 
 
Author:  Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Subject: Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 
 
Purpose: This report provides members with the position on the progress made by 

management in implementing agreed Internal Audit recommendations as at 5 
January 2021 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That members note the contents of the report. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receives an update on management’s 

implementation of agreed audit recommendations. This report forms part of the overall 
reporting requirements to assist the Council in discharging the responsibilities in relation to 
its Internal Audit Service. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to establish a 
process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have been 
effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not taking 
action.  

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes the status of agreed actions. 

 
2.0  CURRENT PROGRESS 
 

2.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to receive and note the current position in 
relation to the completion of agreed audit recommendations. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Follow Up 

Report on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations.  In doing so, the 
Committee is ensuring that it is kept up to date and informed as to the extent to which 
management has progressed Internal Audit recommendations as at 5 January 2021. 
 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed are working towards the 

efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 
 

Page 77

Agenda Item 8.



 
 
4.2 Risk Management  
 
4.2.1 Failure to implement or improve internal controls may lead to the risks associated with 

those controls materialising. 
 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager 
Telephone Number: 01508 533873 
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 
 

 

Page 78



Page 1 of 12 

 

Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 

Period Covered: 11 November 2020 to 5 January 2021 

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 

CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION           2 

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS         2 

3.  STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS        2 

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION All Internal Audit Recommendations  4 

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18 5 

APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS - 2018/19       6 
 
APPENDIX 4 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS -  2019/20      9   
 

 

  

Page 79



Page 2 of 12 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report is being issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation 
to the internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to 
establish a process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have 
been effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not 
taking action. The frequency of reporting and the specific content are for the Authority to 
determine. 

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes: 

 The status of agreed actions.  

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS  

 Eastern Internal Audit Services Recommendations  

2.1 As a result of audit recommendations raised by TIAA Ltd, management agree action to 
ensure implementation within a specific timeframe and by a responsible officer.  

2.2 EIAS recommendations are subsequently uploaded on to the Council’s performance 
management system – Pentana – with this alerting management to update progress in 
advance of the due date through email alerts. Management action to date is then input with 
internal audit then either verifying the evidence provided and closing the recommendation or 
agreeing to the extension date provided. 

2.3 Ordinarily, escalation is also in place to deal with non-responses or recommendations which 
have been overdue for a long time through the Performance, Risk and Audit Board and 
through the Finance Board as required due to the statutory requirements of the Section 151 
Officer to ensure that appropriate risk mitigation action is being taken. Ultimately further 
escalation is through the Executive Management Team and then the Committee.  

Public Sector Partnership Services (PSPS) Audit Recommendations 

2.4 Audit Lincolnshire (formally East Lindsay District Council) undertake the internal audit 
reviews of the Public Sector Partnership Services key finance functions. Recommendations 
raised are then subsequently monitored by Audit Lincolnshire, with updates provided to the 
Head of Internal Audit for South Holland on a quarterly basis. These recommendations are 
recorded on Pentana, which enables greater oversight by both PSPS and South Holland 
management.  

3.  STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Appendix 1 to this report shows the details of the progress made to date in relation to the 
implementation of all agreed internal audit recommendations and reflects the year in which 
the audit was undertaken to enable the Committee to easily identify old outstanding 
recommendations. The table also identifies outstanding recommendations that have 
previously been reported to this Committee and then those which have become outstanding 
during this period.  

 

 

Page 80



Page 3 of 12 

 

 

3.2 In 2017/18 a total of 85 recommendations were raised by both internal audit providers.  

  Of those, 82 have been implemented by management, three are outstanding (one urgent 
and two important).  

3.3 The management responses in relation to the outstanding urgent and important outstanding 
recommendations can be seen at Appendix 2 of the report.  

Number raised  85  

Complete 82 96% 

Outstanding 3 4% 

3.4 In 2018/19 a total of 76 recommendations were raised by both internal audit providers. Of 
these 67 have been completed and 9 (two urgent, six important and one needs attention) are 
overdue.  

Number raised  76  

Complete 67 88% 

Outstanding 9 12% 

3.5  The management responses in relation to the outstanding important recommendations can 
be seen at Appendix 3 of the report. 

3.6 In 2019/20 a total of 84 recommendations were agreed. Of these 49 have been completed, 
20 are outstanding (four urgent, nine important and seven needs attention). A total of 15 are 
not yet due.  

Number raised  84  

Complete 49 58% 

Outstanding 20 24% 

Not yet due 15 18% 

 

Page 81



Page 4 of 12 

 

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION All Internal Audit Recommendations 

  
Completed by 11/11/2020 

and 05/01/21 
Previously reported to 

Committee as outstanding 
(New) Outstanding 

Total 
Outstanding 

Not Yet Due for 
implementation 

 
Priority 

1 
Priority 

2 
Priority 

3 
Priority 

1 
Priority 

2 
Priority 

3 
Priority 

1 
Priority 

2 
Priority 

3  
Priority 

1 
Priority 

2 
Priority 

3 

Audit 
Ref 

Audit Area 
Assurance 

Level 
                  

 
      

2017/18 Internal Audit Reviews                             

SH1804 Welland Homes Reasonable         1         1       

SH1809 Asset Management Limited       1           1       

PSPS Accounts Payable Reasonable         1         1       

2018/19 Internal Audit Reviews                             

SH1915 Housing Needs Reasonable         2 1       3       

PSPS Housing Rents Reasonable         1         1       

PSPS Financial Services Limited       2 3         5       

2019/20 Internal audit Reviews           

SH2002 
Private Sector 
Housing 

No 
assurance 

      4   3       7       

SH2003 Strategic Housing Reasonable          1 1       2       

SH2006 Leisure Reasonable   1               0       

SH2008 Markets Limited               2   2   1   

SH2009 
Corporate 
Governance 

Reasonable         1         1       

SH2010 
Contracts and 
Procurement 

Reasonable   1 2         
 

  0   3   

SH2015 Disaster Recovery Reasonable               4 3 7       

SH2020 
Environmental 
Services 

Reasonable                   0   2 1 

PSPS Accountancy Services Reasonable                   0   2   

PSPS Housing Rents Reasonable               1   1       

PSPS HR & Payroll Reasonable                   0   3   

PSPS Financial Services Reasonable                   0   3   

TOTALS 0 2 2 7 10 5 0 7 3 32 0 14 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 82



Page 5 of 12 

 

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH1804 Welland 
Homes 

Strategic Housing 
Manager – 
Matthew Hogan 

To devise a service level 
agreement to formally record the 
services provided by the Council to 
Welland Homes, and to the terms 
on which those services are 
provided, including service 
charges. 

Important Outstanding 31/03/2018 28/02/2021 A draft copy of the SLA was presented to the 
Welland Homes Board in August 2020 and was 
broadly agreed. However, as there was due to be 
a change of WH board directors it was agreed 
that the new directors would sign off the final 
version. The new directors were appointed in 
December 2020 and the final draft SLA is due to 
be presented to the next Welland Homes board 
meeting on 26th January. 

SH1809 Asset 
Management 

Property Services 
Manager 

A programmed review  of all leases 
is to be undertaken, this will 
include; Lease agreements be 
entered into for existing tenants, 
Lease agreements be entered into 
for new tenants and a review of 
rent increments given to long term 
tenants on or before the expiration 
of their current lease period. 

Urgent Outstanding  21/06/2018 30/04/2021 This work was originally set to be complete by 
the proposed date. However, the outstanding 
leases have currently been placed on hold due to 
the Covid19 situation. A report has been drafted 
for the consideration of Gold command as 
increased rents could impact on local 
businesses. It is difficult to place a revised 
timescale on this action due to the unknown 
entity brought about by Covid19. A further update 
is required. 

Financial Audits PSPS 

PFINAUD001d / 
PFINACT008 
Accounts Payable 
Key Controls 

Head of Finance Staff be reminded to ensure their 
entry on the matrix remains up to 
date. Annual review of the matrix 
entries be undertaken 

Important 
 

Outstanding  31/03/2019 30/04/2021 The New Finance System is still in the 
implementation phase. Testing and build has 
accommodated the need for a segregation of 
duties. The authorisation matrix for SHDC has 
been updated in Q4 of 19/20. It is suggested that 
the implementation of this control is revised to 
April 2021, to include in user guidance the need 
to observe a segregation of duties in addition to 
the control enforced by the new system. Further 
revised date provided. 

 
 
  

P
age 83



Page 6 of 12 

 

APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2018/19 

Audit Area Responsible Officer Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original Date  Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH1915 Housing 
Needs 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager 

The Council’s Common Housing 
Allocations Policy be revised to 
include the following information: 

the housing allocation priorities; 

applicant’s needs/priorities are to 
be reassessed, i.e. the point of 
initial application; following any 
change of circumstance notified to 
the Council by the applicant; at the 
point of an offer of 
accommodation and at the point of 
letting. 

process be clearly documented in 
the applicant’s file; 

the start of a housing 
application/allocation process. 

Important Outstanding  30/09/2019 30/04/2021 Draft prepared for PDP on 4 November, 
however following circulation for approval, EMT 
suggested an all member briefing was 
completed (prior to taking to PDP). Now aiming 
for implementation of policy by April 2021 due 
to change in approval process and potential 
further delays to meetings due to Covid. Copy 
of draft policy approved by PFH and shared 
with Audit. 

SH1915 Housing 
Needs 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager 

In order to comply with the 
requirements of the Council’s 
Common Housing Allocations 
Policy (see recommendation 1), 
the following information needs to 
be clearly evident for each 
application: 
Audit trail demonstrating requisite 
reassessments have been applied 
as and when due; 
Confirmation that each application 
has been subject to peer review; 
Evidence supporting the 
assessment of the applicant’s 
priority rating; and 
Evidence to confirm the applicant 
has been informed of the outcome 
of their housing allocation. 
Refer also to recommendation 1 
bullet points 1 and 5. 
 
 
 
 
 

Important Outstanding  31/08/2019 30/04/2021 Draft prepared for PDP on 4 November, 
however following circulation for approval, EMT 
suggested an all member briefing was 
completed (prior to taking to PDP). Now aiming 
for implementation of policy by April 2021 due 
to change in approval process and potential 
further delays to meetings due to Covid. Copy 
of draft policy approved by PFH and shared 
with Audit. 

P
age 84



Page 7 of 12 

 

Audit Area Responsible Officer Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original Date  Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

Financial Audits PSPS 

PFINACT037S 
Housing Rents 

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

Integration of the Northgate 
system has been included within 
the implementation plan for 
consideration in the new system. 
Tenders are being evaluated in 
May 2019 however confirmation 
as to whether this functionality is 
possible may not be determined 

Important Outstanding 02/03/2020 01/04/2021 The implementation phase for U4BW is still 
underway. The interface have been reviewed 
to optimise the exchange of data via interface. 
Reconciliation controls will be built and 
introduced as part of the transition to go live. 
Expected to be April 2021. A further extension 
is required. 
 

PFINACT080S / 
PFINACT052E / 
PFINACT054E 
Financial Services 
Key Controls 

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

Evaluation of limits and 
restrictions functionality to the 
extent required in the specification 
as part of procurement, and then 
implementation of new Finance 
system 

Urgent Outstanding 01/04/2020 01/04/2021 The development and implementation of the 
new finance system U4BW will establish a set 
of limits around authorisation approval levels 
and assign specific approval rights across the 
system as set out in the Procure to Pay 
Workbook which has been uploaded for 
information.  
The workbook has been viewed and assessed 
by IA colleagues as satisfying those 
requirements.  However formal sign off will only 
be completed following the successful System 
Testing.  
 

PFINACT082S / 
PFINACT057E 
Financial Services 
Key Controls  

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

Evaluation of segregation of roles 
functionality to the extent required 
in the specification as part of 
procurement process 

Urgent  Outstanding 01/04/2020 01/04/2021 The development and implementation of the 
new finance system U4BW will establish a set 
of limits around authorisation approval levels 
and assign specific approval rights across the 
system as set out in the Sales to Cash 
Workbook which has been uploaded for 
information.  
 
The workbook has been viewed and assessed 
by IA colleagues as satisfying those 
requirements.  However formal sign off will only 
be completed following the successful System 
Testing.  
 

PFINACT077S / 
PFINACT053E 
Financial Services 
Key Controls 

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

Purchase Order exemption list be 
reviewed and updated where 
agreed 
 

Important Outstanding  31/07/2019 01/04/2021 Reports are regularly reported to the S151 
officers. The implementation of the new system 
is expected in April 2021. It has been agreed to 
follow a principal of no po, no pay and this will 
be incorporated into user guidance as part of 
transition to Go Live. A further extension is 
required. 
 

P
age 85



Page 8 of 12 

 

Audit Area Responsible Officer Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original Date  Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

PFINACT084S / 
PFINACT064E 
Financial Services 
Key Controls  

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

Evaluation of embedded payment 
terms functionality to the extent 
required in the specification as 
part of procurement, and then 
implementation of new Finance 
system.  
 

Important Outstanding 01/04/2020 01/04/2021 Implementation of the new Finance system is 
now scheduled to go live April 2021 and 
verification will be undertaken then. A further 
extension is required. 
 

PFINACT086S / 
PFINACT066E 
Financial Services 
Key Controls 

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

New processes to be defined on 
implementation of new Finance 
system for AR reconciliations. 

Important Outstanding  01/04/2020 01/04/2021 Implementation of the new Finance system is 
now scheduled to go live April 2021.New 
processes will be implemented then. A further 
extension is required. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 86



Page 9 of 12 

 

APPENDIX 4 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2019/20 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH2002 
Private Sector 
Housing 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager 

The Council needs to compile and 
maintain accurate records of all 
enforcement action due / taken, 
with progress reported to senior 
management at regular intervals 
which is then used to populate the 
Northgate system. 

Urgent Outstanding 31/12/2019 30/11/2020 This recommendation was erroneously showing 
as closed in the Internal Audit section of Pentana 
so has been reopened and the status changed 
to outstanding - extension agreed until 30/11/20. 

SH2002 
Private Sector 
Housing 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager 

PSH and Finance undertake a 
reconciliation between their 
respective Decent Homes 
Assistant Loan records covering 
the previous two years, plus 
current. Thereafter, PSH and 
Finance to confirm the accuracy of 
the quarterly updates in addition to 
Finance being copied in to the 
notification for new / repaid loans 
in order to update their records. 

Urgent Outstanding 31/03/2020 30/11/2020 Update provided, however further information 
has been requested prior to the recommendation 
being updated. 

SH2002 
Private Sector 
Housing 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager 

PSH to ensure all empty property 
checks, as per the quarterly CT 
records, are kept up to date. 

Urgent Outstanding 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 Empty Homes process has now been 
established in Assure. Once information is 
received from Council Tax this will be processed 
into the Assure System and allocated to a 
Private Sector Housing Officer. During the 
Pandemic all non-essential visits have been 
suspended. 

SH2002 
Private Sector 
Housing 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager 

All licenced caravan sites due / 
overdue for inspection are subject 
to the requisite checks forthwith 
with six monthly reports submitted 
to management confirming that all 
schedule inspections have been 
completed in accordance with the 
due dates, having been agreed 
through the risk assessment 
process. 

Urgent Outstanding  31/03/2021 Caravans site licences are currently being 
migrated to assure. At this moment in time, 
whilst we are still in the “build” stage of assure 
we are extremely limited as to what reports can 
be run, at the moment there are only 2 financial 
ones available. Inspections were started after 
the last lockdown, however the further lockdown 
put a stop to this. As people should be in their 
main residence most sites will be closed at this 
time and many will not re-open until the spring 
when hopefully inspections can be reconvened. 

SH2003 
Strategic 
Housing 

Shared Strategic 
Housing Manager 

A development strategy be 
produced to define the work of the 
Strategic Housing team, in terms 
of the different development routes 
available, objectives for of 
delivering new housing, the 
considerations in choosing a 
particular development route and 
the approval process to be 
followed. 

Important Outstanding 31/07/2020 31/03/2021 Capacity to deliver this project was impacted by 
the response to the pandemic with relevant 
officers redeployed and a focus in other areas. 
All new business housing activity paused for 
around 6 months between April and September 
due to the uncertainty in the housing market. 
During this period, we noted that development 
companies were closing sites and furloughing 
staff and property valuations were increasingly 
unreliable. However, as the country and district 
recovered from the initial impact of the pandemic 

P
age 87



Page 10 of 12 

 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

the housing market has recovered and 
development activity has resumed. Therefore, 
the Strategic Housing team is now fully focused 
on delivering a programme of new housing to 
meet the targets for the HRA in 2020/21. 

SH2009 
Markets 

Senior Business 
Intelligence Officer 

Recommendation 2 - Written 
procedures to be produced 
detailing cash collection and 
banking arrangements (including 
recommendations made in this 
audit report). Procedures to also 
clearly define the roles and 
responsibilities of PSPS and the 
Council's Markets, Bus Station and 
Car Parks Inspector and Business 
Support, in the raising of invoices, 
chasing non-payers (permanent 
stall holders) and ensuring all 
income (cash) is correctly 
accounted for. (Refer also to 
recommendation 5 for refunds and 
waivers) Rationale and risk: 
Producing written procedures will 
help ensure all parties are aware 
of the correct processes to be 
followed. This will reduce the risk 
of inconsistent practices 
developing and or key aspects of 
income administration being 
overlooked resulting in financial 
losses through fraud / 
misappropriation or irrecoverable 
debts. 

Important Outstanding  31/03/2021 Things have changed in respect to this 
recommendation, much for the better I think. The 
written procedures will now obviously need to 
include the ‘book and pay’ process that is 
currently being developed. My expectation is we 
will use March 2021 to thoroughly test the ‘book 
and pay’ system so I would therefore suggest an 
initial completion date for the procedures of 
Friday 26th February 2021. 

SH2009 
Markets 

Senior Business 
Intelligence Officer 

Recommendation 5 - The Council 
to request payment in advance of 
trading for all stall holders with 
evidence provided to the Markets, 
Bus Station and Car Parks 
Inspector, to this effect. A 
documented process be put in 
place to offer a refund or waiver 
for payments received but where 
trading had not been possible e.g. 
through inclement weather or 
other justifiable cause. Rationale 
and risk: Requesting payment in 
advance will ensure income due to 
the Council is received thereby 
reducing the risk of debt recovery 
being required and or financial 

Important Outstanding  30/04/2021 A market pitch booking system has been 
introduced and is in operation. Irrespective of 
pitches being free of charge traders can only 
stand on markets if they have pre-booked their 
space via the booking system. 
 
A more comprehensive version of this system is 
under development and set to come into 
operation on April 1st 2021 when pitch charges 
are set to be re-introduced. 

P
age 88



Page 11 of 12 

 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

loss to the Council through 
irrecoverable debts. 

SH2009 
Corporate 
Governance 

Information 
Governance Officer 

All service areas at both Councils, 
along with their Data Protection 
Champions, to provide the 
Information Governance Officer 
with their completed Information 
Asset Registers, forthwith and in 
doing so, confirming their accuracy 
and completeness. 

Important Outstanding 01/06/2020 31/03/2021 There has been some progress with staff 
finalising and uploading their Information Asset 
Registers to the shared portal, however several 
remain outstanding. As the ongoing pandemic 
has caused such an increased workload for staff 
I was asked not to chase them to avoid adding 
further pressure. I have given a couple of gentle 
nudges and even recently asked staff to pass to 
me to see if I can offer help. This has resulted in 
a few more being finalised, however, 
unfortunately I do not have sufficient knowledge 
of each department to be in a position to confirm 
they have included all of their processing. It has 
however again acted as a further gentle prompt. 

SH2015 
Disaster 
Recovery 

Shared ICT Manager Recommendation 1: The Council 
to work with PSPSL to implement 
a process whereby periodic 
access to the Breckland 
infrastructure can be provisioned 
to allow testing of the ability to 
recreate South Holland systems 
from the replicas hosted on the 
Breckland infrastructure to take 
place. 

Important Outstanding 31/12/2020 31/03/2021 In discussion with management 

SH2015 
Disaster 
Recovery 

Shared ICT Manager Recommendation 2: The Council 
to work with PSPSL to ensure that 
the magnetic lock is activated and 
restricted to PSPSL IT staff only. 

Important Outstanding 31/12/2020 31/03/2021 In discussion with management 

SH2015 
Disaster 
Recovery 

Shared ICT Manager Recommendation 3: The Council 
to work with PSPSL to identify 
potential opportunities for the 
relocation of the network cabinet 
that is located within the cleaner's 
store room.  

Important Outstanding 31/12/2020 31/03/2021 In discussion with management 

SH2015 
Disaster 
Recovery 

Shared ICT Manager Recommendation 4: The Council 
to work with PSPSL to ensure that 
the built-in fire suppressant system 
that protects the server room at 
the Council's Priory Road site is 
being /adequately serviced. 

Important Outstanding 31/12/2020 31/03/2021 In discussion with management 

Financial Audits PSPS 
 

PFINAUD001
uS Housing 
Rents 

Steven Houchin, Ellie 
Stacey 

NPBC Tenants Rent Account 
Reconciliations require greater 
focus. 

Important Outstanding 30/09/2020 31/12/2020 The HRA Accountant will review monthly going 
forward. Variances are regularly being escalated 
with Housing for explanations. Agreed extension 
to end Dec to embed this process.  

 

P
age 89



Page 12 of 12 

 

 

P
age 90



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee 14 January 2021 
 
Author:  Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager for SOUTH HOLLAND DC 
 
Subject: Audit Committee Self-Assessment Exercise  
 
Purpose: The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) document 

on “audit committee’s practical guidance for local authorities and police” sets 
out the guidance on the function and the operation of audit committees. It 
represents CIPFA’s view of best practice and incorporate the positions 
statements previously issued.  

 
  The Audit Committee has been undertaking self-assessments since 2008 and 

the CIPFA Audit Committee Self-Assessment Checklist is attached to this 
report for Members to discuss. 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
That Members note and update the attached checklist from 2020 at Appendix 1 to this 
report, ensure that this is still an accurate reflection, and to reflect on whether suggested 
improvements have been completed where best practice was not demonstrated last year.         
 

 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Chartered Institute for Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) document on “audit 

committees – practical guidance for local authorities and police” sets out the guidance on 
the function and operations of audit committees. It represents CIPFA’s view of best practice 
and incorporates the position statement previously issued.  

 
1.2 The guidance states “the purpose of an audit committee is to provide those charged with 

governance independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, 
the internal control environment and the integrity of the financial reporting and annual 
governance processes.  
 

1.3 The Section 151 Officer has overarching responsibility for discharging the requirements for 
sound financial management, and to be truly effective requires an audit committee to 
provide and support challenge.  
 

1.4 Good audit committees are characterised by; balance, objective, independent, 
knowledgeable and properly trained members, a membership that is supportive of good 
governance principles, a strong independently minded Chair, an unbiased attitude and the 
ability to challenge when required.  
 

1.5 It is therefore good practice to complete a regular self-assessment exercise against a 
checklist, to be satisfied that the committee is performing effectively. In addition, the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards also call for the committee to assess their remit and 
effectiveness, in relation to Purpose, Authority and Responsibility, to facilitate the work of 
this committee. This committee carry’s out self-assessment exercises on a regular basis.  
 

Page 91

Agenda Item 9.



 
1.6 The first part of the assessment is a yes/partial/no response and covers: 

 Purpose and Governance; 

 Functions of the Committee; 

 Membership and Support; and  

 Effectiveness of the Committee.  
 

1.7 The second part of the exercise requires an assessment as to how the committee displays 
it is effective through the reports it receives, and is broken down into the following key 
areas: 

 Promoting the principles of good governance and their application to decision 
making; 

 Contributing to the development of an effective Audit Committee; 

 Supporting the establishment of arrangements for the governance of risk and for 
effective arrangements to manage risks; 

 Advising on the adequacy of the assurance framework and considering whether 
assurance is deployed efficiently and effectively;  

 Supporting the quality of the internal audit activity, particularly by underpinning its 
organisational independence; 

 Aiding the achievement of the authority’s goals and objectives through helping to 
ensure appropriate governance, risk, controls and assurance arrangements; 

 Supporting the development of robust arrangements for ensuring value for money;  

 Helping the authority to implement the values of good governance, including 
effective arrangements for countering fraud and corruption risks. 

 
1.8 At the Committee meeting held on the 16 January 2020 the results of the self-assessment 

carried out with the Chair and Vice Chair were presented and agreed. Last year’s results 
are provided at Appendix 1 of this report for an update if required. This will be facilitated 
through a discussion between the Internal Audit Manager and the Committee.    

 
The 2020 self-assessment highlighted the following areas of partial or non-conformance 
with best practice. It is suggested that the Committee considers whether it has improved in 
these areas and if new actions need to be agreed.  
 

 Question 4 – The Committee considers that more could be done to highlight the role and 
purpose of the audit committee across the authority.  

 

 Question 18 - The committee has not obtained feedback on its performance from those 
interacting with the committee or relying on its work.  
  
It was agreed that for both question four and question 18 this could be addressed by 
providing Full Council with annual report containing details of the Governance and Audit 
work plan and highlighting any significant governance, risk and control concerns. Feedback 
could to be received ensuring that Governance and Audit Committee is fulfilling its Terms of 
Reference.  
 

 Question 15 – The membership of the committee has not been provided with the CIPFA 
Audit Committee core knowledge and skills framework. It is suggested that this is circulated 
and if any gaps are identified, training should be requested.  

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 The alternative approach would be for the Governance and Audit Committee not to 

complete the Self-Assessment exercise; however, this would result in no assurance being 

Page 92



provided that the Committee is assisting the Council in achieving good corporate 
governance and is sufficiently proactive.  
 

3.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 For the Committee to review the areas of partial and non-conformance from 2020 to note 

any improvements and update the results where appropriate through discussion.  
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The Governance and Audit Committee can demonstrate that best practice is followed in 

most areas and that they are proactive in helping to raise the profile of internal control, risk 
management and financial reporting matters at the Council. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee, through its terms of reference, helps to ensure that 

the service areas are working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s 
corporate priorities. 

 
5.2 Risk Management  
 
5.2.1 The Committee supports the oversight of the Council’s risk management framework, which 

will in turn ensure that the Council’s key risks are accurately reviewed and addressed. This 
is ensured by following best practice and adopting sound terms of reference. 

 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 None. 
 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit  
Telephone Number: 01508 533791 
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager  
 
Key Decision:  No 
 
Exempt Decision:  No 
 
Appendices attached to this report: Appendix 1 – 2020 Audit Committee Self-Assessment 
Checklist 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1  
 

1 
 

Self-assessment of good practice 
 
This evaluation will support an assessment against recommended practice to inform and support the Audit Committee. This is a high-level 
review that incorporates the key principles set out in CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police. Where an 
Audit Committee has a high degree of performance against the good practice principle’s then it is an indicator that the committee is soundly 
based and has in place knowledgeable membership. These are essential factors in developing an effective Audit Committee.  
 

 Good Practice Questions Yes Partly No 

 Audit Committee purpose and governance    

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee? Yes   

2 Does the audit committee report directly to full authority? Yes   

3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the committee in accordance with CIPFA’s position 
statement? 

Yes   

4 Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and accepted across the authority?  Partly  

5 Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in meeting the requirements of good 
governance? 

Yes   

6 Are the arrangements to hold the committee to account for its performance operating satisfactorily? Yes   

 Functions of the committee    

7 Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all the core area identified in CIPFA’s position 
statement? 

- Good governance 
- Assurance framework 
- Internal audit 
- External audit 
- Financial reporting  
- Risk management 
- Value for money or best value 
- Counter fraud and corruption  

Yes   

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and 
that adequate consideration has been given to all core areas? 

Yes   

9 Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified in CIPFA’s position statement and whether it 
would be appropriate for the committee to undertake them? 

Yes   

P
age 95



Appendix 1  
 

2 
 

10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, are plans in place to address this? n/a   

11 Has the committee maintained its non-advisory role by not taking on any decision-making powers that are 
not in line with its core purpose? 

Yes    

 Membership and support    

12 Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of the board been selected? 
This should include: 

- Separation from the executive 
- An appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the membership 
- A size of committee that is not unwieldy 
- Where independent members are used, that they have been appointed using appropriate process 

Yes   

13 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge and skills? Yes   

14 Are arrangements in place to support the committee with briefings and training? Yes   

15 Has the membership of the committee been assessed against the core knowledge and skills framework and 
found to be satisfactory? 

 Partly  

16 Does the committee have good working relationships with key people and organisations, including external 
audit, internal audit and the chief finance officer? 

Yes   

17 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the committee provided? Yes   

 Effectiveness of the committee    

18 Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from those interacting with the committee or 
relying on its work? 

   No 

19 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding value to the organisation? Yes   

20 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas of weakness? Yes   

 
4 – The Committee considers that more could be done to highlight the role and purpose of the audit committee across the authority.  
 
15 – The membership of the committee will be provided with the core knowledge and skills framework and if any gaps are identified, training 
will be requested.  
 
18 - The committee has not obtained feedback on its performance from those interacting with the committee or relying on its work.  
 
 
 

P
age 96



Appendix 1  
 

3 
 

 
Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee 
 
This assessment tool helps Audit Committee members to consider where it is most effective and where there may be scope to do more. To be 
considered effective, the Audit Committee should be able to identify evidence of its impact or influence linked to specific improvements. 
 
Assessment Key: 
 
5 Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is actively supporting the improvement across all aspects of 

this area. The improvements made are clearly identifiable. 
 
4 Clear evidence from some sources that the committee is actively and effectively supporting improvement across some aspects of this 

area. 
 
3 The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area. There is some evidence that demonstrates their 

impact but there are also significant gaps. 
 
2 There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements, but the impact of this support is limited. 
 
1 no evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported improvements in this area.  
 
 

Areas where the audit 
committee can add value by 
supporting improvement 

Self-evaluation examples, areas of strength & weakness Assessment 1-5 

Promoting the principles of 
good governance and their 
application to decision making 

The Committee meets regularly. Questions and challenges as 
appropriate, as shown through the minutes. 
 
The Committee seeks to gain assurance as needed on the reports 
received. The Committee provides robust review of the Annual 
Governance Statement and the assurances underpinning it.  
 

5 

P
age 97



Appendix 1  
 

4 
 

Through the reports received & the questions raised, the Committee 
supports reviews / audits of governance arrangements. The Committee 
regularly participates in self-assessments of governance arrangements. 
 

Contributing to the 
development of an effective 
control environment 

The Committee monitors the implementation of recommendations 
made by the auditors, and regularly challenges those that are overdue. 
 
The Committee encourages ownership of the internal control 
framework by appropriate managers and calls managers to account as 
necessary / required. The Committee raises significant concerns over 
controls with appropriate senior managers through those presenting the 
reports and by calling Managers to attend the meeting. 
  

4 

Supporting the establishment 
of arrangements for the 
governance of risk and for 
effective arrangements to 
manage risks 

The Committee reviews risk management arrangements, monitors 
improvements and holds risk owners to account for corporate risks. 
Risk Management is on every agenda throughout the year. The 
Committee is also responsible for feeding into the risk management 
framework policy and strives for continuous improvement.  
 

5 

Advising on the adequacy of 
the assurance framework and 
considering whether assurance 
is deployed efficiently and 
effectively 

The Committee will be proactive in identifying gaps or overlaps in 
assurance through the reports it receives.  
 
The Committee reviews and assesses the effectiveness of all 
assurance providers e.g. External Audit and both internal audit 
providers, Eastern Internal Audit Services and Audit Lincolnshire who 
both provide the Committee with assurance.   
 

4 

Supporting the quality of the 
internal audit activity, 
particularly by underpinning its 
organisational independence 

The Committee reviews the audit charter and functional reporting 
arrangements as part of the annual internal audit plans report brought 
to the Committee by the Head of Internal Audit.  
 
The Committee assesses the effectiveness of internal audit 

5 

P
age 98



Appendix 1  
 

5 
 

arrangements and supporting improvements through progress reporting 
and the annual report provided to the Committee by the Head of 
Internal Audit. The Committee recognises that internal audit is a key 
source of information for them to consider. 
 

Aiding the achievement of the 
authority’s goals and objectives 
through helping to ensure 
appropriate governance, risk, 
control and assurance 
arrangements 

The Committee receives updates on major projects and programmes to 
ensure that governance and assurance arrangements are in place and 
through reports received from internal audit and management. The 
Committee reviews the effectiveness of performance management 
arrangements through the specific internal audit reviews as 
appropriate. The Committee also looks at the corporate risks which are 
often impacted on by major projects. 
 

5 

Supporting the development of 
robust arrangements for 
ensuring value for money 

No score has been given to allow the Committee to review their first set 
of annual accounts from External Audit.  

 

Helping the authority to 
implement the values of good 
governance, including effective 
arrangements for countering 
fraud and corruption risks 

This section will be scored once policies have been presented to the 
Committee for review.  

 

 

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) – Mark Stinson

  

To: Governance and Audit Committee - Thursday, 14 January 2021  

 

(Author: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer) 

 

Subject Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme 

 

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee 

 

Recommendation: 
 
That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 

Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.  
 

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly. 

 
1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 

some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings. 
 
1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 

Committee.  It lays out the meeting dates for the 2020/21 municipal year. Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency 
with which it is considered. 
 

1.5 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 

 Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 

 Committee in a clear, structured and organised way. 

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad 

 hoc issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be 

 covered at a future meeting, and any one-off issues.  

2.0 OPTIONS 

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.  
 

2.2 To do nothing. 
 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date. 

Page 101

Agenda Item 10.



 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information. 

 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  Constitution & Legal 
 

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 

author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 

assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 

line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution. 

5.2  Risk Management  
 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 

 there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 

 monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 

 governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of 

 risk issues. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post. 
 

7.0 ACRONYMS  

7.1 None. 
 

Background papers:- None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer 

Telephone Number 01775 764454 

Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee 

Page 102



APPENDIX A 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2020/21 
 
 

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

14 January 2021 Grant Claims 19/20 Sharon Hammond External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval 
 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2020-21 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting. 

 Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment 

Internal Audit For confirmation. 
Good practice. 

Annual 
 
 

 Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Mnimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2021/22 

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement. 
To review Treasury Managmenet 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators. 

Annual 

11 March 2021 Audit Plan 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval 
 

Annual 

 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2019/20 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

Mandatory/Consultation requirement. 
To approve audit fees. 
 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2019-20 

Internal Audit  To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting 

P
age 103



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2021/22 

Internal Audit 
 

Annual Internal Audit Workplan - 
Mandatory approval 
 

Annual 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 
 

 Financial Statements 2020/21 
Accounting Policies  
 

Section 151 Officer 
 

Not mandatory, but good practice. Annual 
 

 Q3 2020-21 Risk Report Ross Bangs/Corey 
Gooch 

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Training requirements – consideration to 
be given training requirements for the 
Committee 
 

   

20 May 2021 Q4 2020-21 Risk Report  Ross Bangs/Corey 
Gooch 

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 
 

To each 
meeting 

 
The following item to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report: 
 

 The Head of Internal Audit to present a performance report detailing levels and types of fraud.   
 

 External Audit (Ernst & Young) – Local Government Audit Committee Briefings are produced quarterly.  Where its publication coincides 
with a meeting, it will be added to the agenda for that meeting.  If not, it will be circulated outside of the meeting to members of the 
Committee. 

P
age 104


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	5. Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim - 2019/20
	Appendix 1 for Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim - 2019/20

	6. Treasury Management Policy & Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2021/22.
	Appendix A Treasury Management Policy Statement 2021-22
	Appendix B Treasury Management Policy Statement

	7. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
	Appendix A

	8. Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations.
	Appendix A for Follow Up Report

	9. Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment
	Appendix A

	10. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A


